
RESOLUTION 

2022/2023 AUDIT 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, the firm Holman Frenia Allison, PC has prepared an audit for the Wall Township 

School District from July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the audit has been distributed to each Board member for review; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Matthew Holman of the firm of Holman Frenia Allison, PC was present at 

the Regular meeting of the Board of Education of the Township of Wall on February 13, 2024, to 

present the Audit and answer questions of the Board members and public concerning the audit. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wall Township Board of Education accepts 

the 2022/2023 audit as presented. 



      

    
  

                 
           

    
    

 

   

 
    

  

   

  
 

 

 
 

  
   

 

 

 

  

 
 
 

   

   

   

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
  

 
 

 
 

  
 

  

        





 

 

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION 

AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS SUMMARY 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

Recommendations: 

 

1.  Administrative Practices and Procedures 

 

None 

 

2.  Financial Planning. Accounting and Reporting 

 

Finding 2023-001 (Financial Statement Finding 2023-001): The School District should request 

approval from the Executive County Superintendent for any transfer from a budgeted appropriation 

that cumulatively exceeds 10 percent of that amount and maintain documentation of the written 

approval. 

 

3. School Purchasing Programs 

 

None 

 

4. School Food Service 

 

None 

 

5. Student Body Activities 

 

None 

 

6. Application for State School Aid 

 

None 

 

7. Pupil Transportation 

 

None 

 

8. Facilities and Capital Assets 

 

None 

 

9. Miscellaneous 

 

None 

 

10. Status of Prior Year Audit Findings/Recommendations 

 

None 



AUDIT RESPONSE 

2022/2023 

AUDIT 
 

  
 

WHEREAS, the firm Holman Frenia Allison, PC has prepared an audit for the Wall 

Township Board of Education from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 and; 

 

WHEREAS, the audit has been distributed to each Board member, there has been a 

presentation and review of the audit, and the audit has been formally accepted by the Wall 

Township Board of Education and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Business Administrator has prepared a Corrective Action Plan which has 

been presented to the Board of Education; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Wall Township Board of Education approves 

the Corrective Action Plan as presented. 

 

 

  



Corrective Action Plan (CAP)
For the Fiscal Year ended June 30,2023

School District:

County:

Contact Person:

Type of Audit:

Telephone Number:

Email Address:

Date of Board Meeting:

Wall Township Public Schools

Monmouth

Brian J. Smyth

Regular

732-556-2016

bsmyth@wallpublicschools.org

February 13,2024

Recommendation

Number Corrective Action Required by The Board Method of Implementation

Person

Responsible for

Implementation

Planned

Completion Date of

Implementation

2023-001 District should request approval from the Executive

County Superintendent for any transfer from a budgeted
appropriation that cumulatively exceeds 10 percent of that

amount and maintain written approval.

Accounting Manager will review

monthly transfer reports with

Business Administrator, submit

requests for approval to the County

Superintendent and maintain written

approval.

Elaine Harder

Brian Smyth
February 29, 2024

Chief School Administrator: Dr. Tracy HainiertTaiT^^^^-T^^^ Date:)^Aj^I
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WALL TOWNSHIP PUBLIC SCHOOLS
OFFICE OF THE BUSINESS ABMTOSTRATOR/BOARD SEC&ETARY

PO Box 1199
Wall, New Jersey 07719-1199

Brian J. Smytfa Phone: 732-556-2016
Business Administrator/Board Secretary FAX: 732-556-2102

February 2, 2024

Honorable President,

Members of the Wall Board of Education, and

Citizens of the Township of Wall
Wall Township Public School District
County ofMonmoufh
Wall, NJ 07719

Dear Board Members and Citizens of the Township ofWaU:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the Wall Township Public School District (District) for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the Board

of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief, file data presented in this report is accurate in

all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position of the

governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund

information at June 30,2023, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable,

for the year then ended. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's

financial activities have been included.

The introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to complement Management's Discussion

and Analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the District s organizational chart, a roster ofofficials»

the list of independent auditors, and advisors. The financial section includes management's discussion and

analysis (presented immediately after the report of independent auditors), basic financial statements, required

supplementary information, and other supplementaiy information, as well as the auditors' report thereon. The

statistical section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year

basis and is unaudited. The district is required to undergo an annual Single Audit in conformity with the
provisions of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost

Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular
15-08 0MB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid". Information

related to this Single Audit, Including the independent auditors report on the internal control and compliance
with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, along with fmdings and questioned costs, if any, are

included in the Single Audit Section of this report



1. Reportine Entity and its Service

The Wall Township Public School District is an independent reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as established by GASB Statement No, 14, amended by
GASB Statements No. 39,61, and 80. All funds of the District are included in this report. The District provides
a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12. These include regular and

special education students. In addition, services are provided for pre-schooi handicapped special needs

students. The Wall Township Public School District is comprised of five elementary schools, one middle school
and one high school. The District student count at October 15, 2023 was3,192.

2. Economic Condition and Outlook

The district had an increase in state aid for 2022-23 and it is anticipated that this source of revenue will remain

consistent, however, the District continues to rely on reserve accounts to fund the annual budget for capital

improvements. Township ratables continue to increase annually, effectively reducing the annual impact on

individual taxpayers due to the annual tax levy increase.

3. Lone-Term Financial PlanninE/MaJor Initiatives

The 2022-23 budget increased by 4% when compared to the prior year s budget with the Operating Budget
totaling $82,200,000. The increase in the overall budget was largely due to appropriations for instructtonal
technology. The 2022-23 budget included capital expenditures in the amount of $2,100,000 for district wide
paving projects, which was slightly up from the prior year.

4. Internal Controls

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls that are designed to

ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure, that adequate

accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as they pertain to governmental entities.
Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits

likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring that adequate

internal controls are in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those

programs. Internal controls are also subject to periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of internal

controls, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance programs, as well as evaluate

whether the District has complied with the applicable laws and regulations relating to its major programs.

5. Budgetary Controls mid Process

[n addition to internal controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The legal level of budgetary control is

established at the line item accounts within each fund. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure

compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the Board of
Education. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the

debt service fund. Project-Iength budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in the capital

projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis.



Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the

subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as an assignment of fund balance at June 30,

2023.

Beginning with the 2012-2013 budget, the state of New Jersey allowed school districts to elect to eliminate the
budget vote and adopt a budget approved by the Board of Education s^d the New Jersey Department of
Education (NJDOE) providing that the tax levy increase does not exceed 2% plus any allowable waivers. The
Wall Township Board of Education elected to eliminate the budget vote at that time. In addition to the 2% limit
on tax levy increases^ there are restrictions on budget transfers during the year that can be made without NJDOE

approval.

6. Financial Policies

The intent of the Board of Education is to ensure that the District manages its budget and finance in a fiscally
prudent and responsible way by establishing financial policies for budget preparation and fiscal planning. The
govemment-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the

accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is

incurred. Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of

accounting, revenues except for certain grant revenues, are recognized when susceptible to accrual that is when

they become measurable and available. Property taxes, interest and certain General Fund revenues are the

significant revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual.

7. Accountine System and Reports

The District's financial statements are presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting
system of the District is organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Basic

Financial Statements," Note 1.

8. Debt Admmistration

Under the provisions of New Jersey statutes, school districts may not incur indebtedness greater than 4% of

the average equalized valuation of taxable property. As of June 30, 2023, the District's outstanding debt issues

are below the legal debt margin and are summarized in the "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements".

Through long term planning^ the District scheduled a bond referendum to fund necessary building maintenance

and facility upgrade capital projects for December 13, 2022. The capital improvements will be implemented
over the next two, and possibly three, fiscal years. The management of debt and long-term planning allowed

for the bond referendum ($66,599,206) to take place In the 2022-23 fiscal year, the sale of bonds and retiring
ofaH prior existing long-term debt in the 2023-24 fiscal year, and the start of payments against the 2023 General
Obligation bonds ($66,599»000) in the 2024-25 fiscal year. The long-term planning allows for a stable debt
service tax levy on a year-to-year basis when transirioning to the new debt.

It is noted that the Wall Township Public School District continued to maintain its Moody's Investors Services
Aa3 fating. Additionally, S&P Global Rating assigned its *AA' long-term and underlying rating to the Districts
Series 2023 General Obligation bonds to be sold in the 2023-24 fiscal year after the district approved a bond
referendum in the amount of $66,599,208 on December 13,2022. The referendum included two questions, the

1st question in the amount of $53,078,733 for various projects at multiple schools, and a 2nd question in the

amount$13,520,475 for various projects at multiple schools, mcluding athletic complex improvements at Wall

High School.



S&P Global Ratings also affirmed it 'AA* rating on the district's existing General Obligation bonds and noted
the district's outlook is stable.

9. Other Information

State statutes requu'e an annual audit by independent certified public accountants or registered municipal

accountants. The accounting firm of Holman Frenia AUison, P.C. was selected by the Board. In addition to

meeting the requirements set forth in the State statutes, the audit was also designed to meet the requirements

of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requu'ements, Cost Principles,

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08

0MB, "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid". The auditor's report

on the basic financial statements and combining individual fund statements and schedules is included in the

financial section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in The

Smgle Audit section of this report.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States require that management provide a narrative

introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management's

Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter oftransmittai is designed to complement MD&A and should be

read in conjunction with it. The District's MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the

independent auditors.

10. Acknowledements

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Wall Township Board of Education for their

concern in ensuring fiscal responsibility to the citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby

contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation

of Uiis report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and

accounting staff.

rfrTan J. Smytly ^

Business Adrrfinistrator
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ASSOCIATION OF
SCHOOL BUSINESS OFFICIALS
INTERNATIONAL

The Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting

is presented to

Wall Township Public School District

for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30,2022.

The district report meets the criteria established for

ASBO International's Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting.

CERTIFICATE
EXCELLENCE
IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

o}.^h^— ^^a^^A^L^

John W. Hutchison Siobhan McMahon, CAE

President Chief Operations Officer/

Interim Executive Director
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1985 Cedar Bridge Ave., Suite 3 • Lakewood, NJ 08701 • 732.797.1333

194 East Bergen Place • Red Bank, NJ 07701 • 732.747.0010

Certified Public Accountants + Advisors WWW.hfacpaS.COm

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Wall Township School District

County ofMonmouth

Wall. New Jersey 07719

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,

each major fund and the aggregate remauiing fund mformation of the Wall Township School District, County of

Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise the School District's basic fmancial statements as listed in the table of

contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, tlie respective financial

position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the School District as of June '30, 2023, and the respective changes ill financial position and, where

applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States; and m compliance with audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance,

Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be

independent of the School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical

requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of fmancial statements that are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,

considered in the aggregate, tliat raise substantial doubt about the School District's ability to continue as a going

concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known iitformation that may

raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

15



Auditor's Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an

audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, and audit

requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial

likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on

the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance witih generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards and

audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis,

evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Scliool

District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates

made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation oftlie financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial

doubt about die School District's ability to continue as a gomg concern for a reasonable period of time,

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of die audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified

during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requu'e that the management's discussion and

analysis, budgetary comparison information, and the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions and

other post employment benefits, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial

statements. Such JnfonTiation, although not a part of die basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited

procedures to the required suppiemeataiy mformation m accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the

United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our mquiries, the basic fmancia!

statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic fmancial statements. We do not express an

opinion or provide any assurance on the information because tiie limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opmions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
School District's basic fmaneial statements. The introductory section, combining statements and related major fund

supporting statements and schedules, and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis, as requu-ed

by the Division of Administration and Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey, and are not a required

part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial

assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, wid Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08,

Single Audit Policy'for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.
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Such mformation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to

the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconcitmg such mformation directly to the underlying accounting and other records

used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements fhemselves, and other additional

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our

opinion, the accompanying combining statements and related major fund supporting statements and schedules and

schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects,

in relation to the basic fmancial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for tfie other mformation included in the annual report. The other mformatiort

comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic fmaucial statements do not cover the other information, and we

do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information

and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other mformatiou and the basic fmancial

statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materialiy misstated. If, based on the work

performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required

to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards , we have also issued our report dated February 2, 2024 on

our consideration of the School Districfs internal control over fmancial reporting and on our tests of its

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts^ and grant agreements and other matters. The

purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial

reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government

Auditing Standards in considering the School District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully Submitted,

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.

Matthew F. Holman

Certified Public Accountant

Public School Accountant, #20CS00260100

Lakewood, New Jersey

February 2, 2024
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Management s Discussion and Analysis
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

This section of the Wall Township Board of Education's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report presents our

discussion and analysis of fhe District's financial perfomiance during the fiscal year that ended on June 30,

2023. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the District's
financial statements, which immediately follow this section.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board s (GASB) Statement No. 34 - Basic Financial

Statements-Management s Discussion and Analysis-for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999 that is

also required by the New Jersey State Department of Education. Certain comparative information between the

current fiscal year (2022-2023) and the prior fiscal year (2021-2022) is required to be presented in the MD&A.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Key financial highlights for 2023 are as follows:

, In total, net position of governmental activities increased $2,620,022, which represents an 11.58%

increase from fiscal year 2022. Total net position of business-type activities increased $329,312,

which represents a 43,33% increase from fiscal year 2022.

, General revenues accounted for $79,161,065 in revenue or 80.79% of all revenues. Program specific

revenues in the form of charges for services, operating grants and contributions, and capital grants

and contributions accounted for $18,824,549 or 19.21% of total revenues of $97,985,614.

^ Total assets of governmental activities decreased by $3,882,936 as cash and cash equivalents and

restricted cash decreased by $3,951,178, receivables increased by $308,718, and total capital assets

decreased by $240,476.

^ Total liabilities of governmental activities increased by $315,810 as accounts payable decreased by
$612,437 and non-cun-ent liabilities increased by $886,050.

The District had $93,313,250 m governmental activity expenses; only $15,680,141 offtiese expenses
were offset by program specific grants, or contributions. General revenues from governmental

activities (primarily property taxes) of $79,138,620 were adequate to provide for these programs,
resulting in an increase in net position for governmental activities of $2,620,022.

, In the governmental funds, the general fund had $95,656,115 in revenues, $98,358,847 in

expenditures. The general fund's fund balance decreased by $2,702,732 over fiscal year 2022.

USING THIS ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT (ACFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to these financial statements. These

statements are organized in a way to allow the reader to understand the Wait Township Board of Education as a

financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look

at specific financial activities.
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This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District's basic fmancial statements.

The District's basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) Govermnent-wide fmancial

statements, 2) Fund financial statements, aud 3) Notes to the fmancial statements. This report also contains

required supplementary information and other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial

statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide

readers with a broad overview of the Districts finances, in a maimer similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position (A-l) presents information ou the difference between assets plus deferred

outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources reported as net position. Over time,

increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the

District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Changes in Net Position (A"2) presents information showing how the net position of the

District changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the

underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues

and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in fixture fiscal

periods.

The govemment-wide financial statements can be found as Exhibits A-l and A-2 in this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a group of related accounts that Is used to maintain control over

resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The District, like other state and local

governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-related legal

requkemenls. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,

proprietary funds and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in

the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,

governmental fund financial statements focus on the near- term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as

well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such mformation may be

useful in evaluating the District's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial statements, it is

useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for

governmental activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better

understand the long-term impact of the District's near-tenn financing decisions. Both the governmental fund

balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance

provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

22



The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the

governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in

fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund, and debt service fund, all of which

are considered to be major funds.

The general and special revenue funds utilize a legally adopted annual budget. A budgetary comparison

statement has been provided for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate compliance with this

budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found as Exhibits B-l through B-3 in this report.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains one proprietary fund type, an enterprise fund. The enterprise fund is used to account for

operations that are fmanced and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of

the District is that the costs of providing goods or services be financed through user charges. The food services

enterprise fund provides for the operation of food services in all schools within the District. The proprietary

fund has been included within business-type activities m the district-wide financial statements.

The food services fund, Before and After School Programs, and Chromebook Fund detail fmancial statements

can be found as Exhibits B-4 through B-6 in this report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the governmental entity.

Fiduciary funds are not reflected In the district-wide fmancial statement because the resources of those funds are

not available to support the District's own programs.

Under the guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 84, the District has

reclassified the Fiduciary Funds maintained m the preceding period and now maintains no fiduciary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full

understanding of die data provided in the district-wide and fand financial statements. The notes to the fmancial

statements can be found after the fund financial statements in this report.

Other Information. The combining and individual fund statements referred to earlier in connection with

governmental and enterprise funds are presented immediately following the notes to the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The District's financial position is the result of several types of financial transactions, including the net results of

activities, fhe acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation

of capital assets.

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District's financial position. The

followingtableprovidesasummary of net position for June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively:
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Assets

Current and Other

Assets $

Capital Assets, Net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of

Resources

Deferred Outflows

Relating to Pension

Deferred Charges on

Refunding of Debt

Total

Deferred Outflows

of Resources

Liabilities

Long-Tenn Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of

Resources

Deferred Inflows

Relating to Pension

Total

Deferred

Inflows of Resources

Net Position

Net Investment in

Capital Assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position $

Governmental

2023

13,798,188 $

38,324,321

52,122,509

2,635,603

16,050

2,651,653

22,763,560

3,710,328

26,473,888

3,061,856

3,061,856

35,345,032

7,827,325

(17,933,939)
25,238,418 3

Net Position

June 30,

Activities

2022

; 17,440,648 $
38,564,797

56,005,445

2,040,962

38,972

2,079,934

21,877,510

4,280,568

26,158,078

9,308,905

9,308,905

32,742,346

8,316,445

(18,440,395)
> 22,618,396 $

Busmess-Type Activities

2023

1,107,868 $

21,905

1,129,773

40,488

40,488

21,905

1,067,380

1,089,285 $

2022

752,395

34,773

787,168

27,195

27,195

34,773

725,200

759,973

The District's largest net position component is the Net Investment in Capital Assets portion as shown above.

Net Investment in Capital Assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may

be used. Within this category, the investment amount of $35,345,032 represents primarily the capital

investment. The Net Investment in Capital Assets, also includes the portion of capital assets not yet fully

depreciated at June 30, 2023.
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Restricted net position decreased $489, 120 from the prior year to $7,827,325 at June 30,2023.

Unrestricted net position may be used to meet the District's ongoing operating obligations to vendors, debtors

and employees. The unrestricted net position includes the unassigned General Fund balance netted with the

amount of long-term obligations that are not invested in capital assets. The ($17,933,939) is shown as

unrestricted net position for Governmental Activities.

The following table provides a summary of revenues and expenses for the District's governmental and business-

type activities and the change in net position for June 30, 2023 and 2022. Significant variances in revenues and
expenditures from year to year, and explanations thereof, are detailed in the 'Financial Analysis of the District's

Funds' section later in this report.

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:

Property Taxes

Federal and State Aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses:

Instructional Services

Support Services

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

June 30. 2023

Governmental

Activities

$ 1,114,511 ;

15,680,141

72,651,107

6,247,122

240,391

95,933,272

55,997,773

37,305,861

9,616

93,313,250

2,620,022

22,618,396

$ 25,238,418 ;

Business-Type

Activities

£ 1,470,814 $

559,083

22,445

2,052,342

1,723,030

1,723,030

329,312

759,973

? 1,089,285 $

Total

2,585,325

16,239,224

72,651,107

6,247,122

262,836

97,985,614

55,997,773

39,028,891

9,616

95,036,280

2,949,334

23,378,369

26,327,703
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June 30. 2022

Governmental

Activities

$ 989,434 ;

20,648,870

71,461,986

5,607,415

275,423

98,983,128

56,431,661

37,296,734

121,253

93,849,648

5,133,480

17,484,916

$ 22,618,396 ;

Business-Type

Activities

E 816,394 $

1,567,526

1,682

2,385,602

1,878,173

1,878,173

507,429

252,544

£ 759,973 $

Total

1,805,828

22,216,396

71,461,986

5,607,415

277,105

101,368,730

56,431,661

39,174,907

121,253

95,727,821

5,640,909

17,737,460

23,378,369

Revenues:

Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

General Revenues:

Property Taxes

Federal and State Aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenses:

instructional Services

Support Services

Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning

Net Position, Ending

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds

As noted earlier, the District uses fluid accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with fmance-related

legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term

inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's

financing requirements. The unassigned fund balance is divided between designated balances and undesignated

balances. The capital projects fund is restricted by state law to be spent for the purpose of the fund and is not

available for spending at the District's discretion.

Financial Information at Fiscal Year-End

The following schedule presents a summaiy of the general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund

revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the amount and percentage of increases and

(decreases) in relation to prior year revenues.

Local Tax Levy

Tuition Charges

Miscellaneous

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total

Amount

$ 72,651,107

1,114,511

990,080

24,757,535

2,108,332

$ 101,621,565

Juue 30, 2023

Percent

Of Total
71.49% $

1.10%

0.97%

24.36%

2.07%

100.00% $

Increase

(Decrease)

From 2022

1,189,121

125,077
243,002

945,542

(378,884)

2,123,858

Percent of

Increase

(Decrease)

1.66%

12.64%

32.53%

3.97%

-15.23%

2.13%
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Local Tax Levy

Tuition Charges

Miscellaneous

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total

Amount

$ 71,461,986

989,434

747,078

23,811,993

2,487,216

$ 99,497,707

June 30. 2022

Percent

Of Total

71.82% $

0.99%

0.75%

23.93%

2.50%

100.00% $

Increase

(Decrease)

From 2021

1,323,792

62,263

243,231

4,275,215

847,148

6,751,649

Percent of

Increase

(Decrease)

1.89%

6.72%

48.27%

21.88%

51.65%

7.28%

The increase in the local tax levy is necessary to support the District's 2022 - 2023 general fund budget. Tuition

charges increased in 2022 - 2023 due to an increase m the number of students received from other districts into

the District s programs.

The following schedule presents a summary of the general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund

expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and the amount and percentage of increases and

(decreases) in relation to prior year expenditures.

Current Expenditures:

Instruction

Undistributed

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Total

Current Expenditures:

Instruction

Undistributed

Capital Outlay

Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Total

s

$

Amount

37,478,791

62,477,150

1,918,773

2,657,224

200,241

104,732,179

Amount

36,971,627

59,219,894

2,085,684

2,755,000

332,738

101,364,943

June 30. 2023

Percent

Of Total

35.79% $

59.65%

1.83%

2.54%

0.19%

100.00% $

June 30, 2022

Percent

Of Total

36.47% $
58.42%

2.06%

2.72%

0.33%

100.00% $

Increase

(Decrease)

From 2021

507,164

3,257,256

(166,911)

(97,776)
(132,497)

3,367,236

Increase

(Decrease)

From 2020

985,936

10,697,735

490,342

95,000

(125,320)

12,143,693

Percent of

Increase

(Decrease)

1.37%

5.50%

-8.00%

-3.55%

-39.82%

3.32%

Percent of

Increase

(Decrease)

2.74%

22.05%

30.74%

3.57%

-27.36%

13.61%
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Throughout the year, as necessary, budget transfers were effectuated between budget accounts to re-align the

2022-2023 budget. Budget transfers were effectuated based on expected positive and negative budget variances.

The budget is continually managed and revised with budget transfers as necessary or practical to do so.

Significant Budget Transfers and Variations:

^ TPAF, which is the state s contribution to the pension fund, is an "on-behalf revenue and

expenditure item to the district and is required to be reflected in the financial statements.

, Reallocations were made among the various salary budget accounts to reflect changes in the

personnel budget for fhe 2022-2023 year.

, Transfers were made into purchased services for special education programs to provide funds for

required additional services.

Based on the fmaucial results of 2022-2023 unassigned fund balance decreased by $1,037,508 to $2,457,270
(2% required per S-1701, net of allowable adjustments).

Proprietary Funds. The District's proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the district-

wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The Food Services Enterprise Fund showed a change in net position of $257,472 in 2022-2023 as compared to a

change in net position of $426,125 in 2021-2022. Operating revenues increased by 149.48% in 2022-2023 while
operating expenses decreased 12.13%. The food service incurred an operating loss of ($305,049) in 2022-2023,

as compared to an operating loss of ($1,142,676) in 2021-2022. Funding from the State and Federal Government
under die State and National Programs decreased $1,008,443 from 2021-2022 to 2022-2023. The unrestricted net

position of the food service program was $833,688 and the restricted amount of Net Investment in Capital Assets

totaled $21,905 at June 30, 2023. Although the food service operation operating income is still a loss, the

district has recognized an increase in Net Position in the current year due to nonoperating revenues. The District

continues to consult with a food service advisor and maintains that the operating income will be profitable in the

foreseeable future.

The Before and After School Programs Fund showed a change m net position of $98,804 in 2022-2023 as
compared to a change in net position of $80,833 in 2021-2022. Operating revenues increased by 1.50% in 2022-

2023 while operating expenses increased 0.02%. The Before and After School Program incurred an operating

income of $79,933 in 2022-2023, as compared to an operating income of $80,567 in 2021-2022.

The Chromebook Enterprise Fund showed a change in net position of ($26,964) in 2022-2023 as compared to a
change in net position of $471 in 2021-2022. Operating revenues increased by 627.27% in 2022-2023 while the
fund has incurred operational expenses of $29,500 compared to $0 in 2021-2022. The Chromebook Enterprise
Fund incurred an operating loss of $27,100 in 2022-2023, as compared to operating income of $330 in 2021-

2022.

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2023 the District has capital assets of $38,346,226 net of depreciation, which includes land,

construction in progress, land improvements, buildings/construction, machinery and equipment.
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Land

Land Improvements

Buildings/Construction

Machinery and Equipment

Total

Land

Land Improvements

Buildings/Constmction

Machinery and Equipment
Total

June 30. 2023

Governmental

Activities

$ 534,652
34,329,570

201,342
2,805,383

$ 38,324,321

June 30. 2022

Governmental

Activities

$ 534,652
34,474,751

226,442

3,328,952
$ 38,564,797

Business-Type

Activities

$

21,905

$ 21,905

Busmess-Type

Activities

34,773

$ 34,773

Additional information on the District's capital assets can be found in Note 5 to the basic financial statements.

Debt Administration and Other Obligations

At June 30, 2023, the District's outstanding debt issues included $2,410,000 respectively of general obligation

bonds (2015 refunding bonds), $109,130 and $378,578 respectively offmanced purchases (2020 School Buses
and 2022 School Buses), $141,777 respectively of unamortized bond premiums and $1,739,871 in compensated
absences payable.

Additional iuformatiou on the District's debt administration and other obligations can be found in Note 7 to the
basic financial statements.

Economic Factors and Subsequent Year's Budgets

^ The District anticipates that the approved 2023-2024 budget will be adequate to satisfy all 2023-2024
financial needs, barring any significant unexpected simations or conditions unforeseen at this time.

, At this time it appears that it will be a challenge to sustain the level of surplus utilization the District
has used in funding budgets in recent years. The excess surplus available for use in the 2023-2024

budget is $-0-.

^ It is expected the State of New Jersey will again delay the final state aid payments to school districts
for 2023-2024.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Wall Township School District's finances

for all those with an interest in the District's finances. Questions concerniug any of the information provided in

this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Business

Administrator/Board Secretary's Office, Wall Township Board of Education, 1620 18th Avenue, Wall, NJ
07719.
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EXHIBIT A-l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30,2023

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTFVITIES TOTAL

ASSETS:
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Receivables, Net (Note 4)

Inventory
Cash Held with Fiscal Agents
Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents

Capital Assets, Net (Note 5)
Nou-Depreciable

Depreciable

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to Pensions (Note 8)

Related to Loss on Debt Refunding

Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

LIABILITIES:
Accounts Payable

Due to Other Governments
Unearned Revenue

Accrued Interest
Payroll Deductions & Withhotdings

Unemployment Liability
Internal Balances
Other Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities (Note 7):
Due Within One Year
Due m More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Related to Pensions (Note 8)

Total Deferred Inflow of Resources

NET POSITION:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:

Capital Projects
Debt Service

Emergency Reserve
Maintenance Reserve

Unempioyment Reserves
Scholarsliip Reserve
Student Activities Reserve

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Net Position

$ 3,546,353 $
2,090,949

243,420
7,917,466

988,426
.37,335,895

52,122,509

2,635,603
16,050

2,651,653

897,685
1,542,503

98,396
61,005

1,048
136,435
71,300

901,956

2,782,521

19,981,039

26,473,888

3,061,856

3,061,856

35,345,032

5,086,378
8,596

381,933
1,709,613

285,768
38,461

316,576
(17,933,939)

$ 25,238,418 $

974,124 $
56,659

5,785

21,905

1,058,473

1,296

39,192

(71,300)

(30,812)

21,905

1,067,380

1,089,285 $

4,520,477

2,147,608

5,785
243,420

7,917,466

988,426
37,357,800

53 J 80,982

2,635,603

16.050

2,651,653

898,981

1,542,503
137,588

61,005
1,048

136,435

901,956

2,782,521
19,981,039

26,443,076

3,061,856

3,061,856

35,366,937

5,086,378
8,596

381,933
1,709,613

285,768
38,461

316,576
(16,866,559)

26,327,703

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT A-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

PROGRAM REVENUES NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

L^>
a\

FUNCTIONS/PROGSAMS

Governmental Activities:

Instruclion:
Regular Instruction
Special Education histruction

Vocational Education

Other Instruction
School Sponsored Cocumcubr/Athletics

Support Services:
Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Administrative Info. Technology

Plant Operations & Maintenaiice

Pupil Transportation
Transfer to Charter Schools

Interest & Other Charges

Total Govemmentol Activities

Business-Type Activities;
Food Service
Before and After School Programs

Chromebooks

Total Bnsiaess-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

General Revenues:

Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Property Taxes, Levied for Debt Service

Federal &, State Aid Not Restricted

Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues

Change In Net Position

Net Position - Beginning

Net Position - Boding

EXPENSES

$ 36,462,029
15,558,333

785,091
1,498,210

1,694,110

12,175,683
1,641.072

4,214,699

1,079,387
1,051,917
9,307,757

7,146,575
688,772

9,616

93,313,250

1,384,212
309,318
29,500

1,723.030

$.. 95,036,280.

CHARGES FOR
SERVICES

$ 1,114,511

1,114,511

1,079,163
389.251

2,400

1,470,814

$ 2,5.85,325,

OPERATING
GRANTS &

CONTRIBUTIONS

S 7.970,517
2.728,486

48,096
262.743
103,785

745,909
100,536

1,789,250
66,126

64,443
591,783
437,815

42,196
728,457

15,680,141

559,083

559.083

$ 16,23?,224_

GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES

S (27,377,001)
(12,829,847)

(736,995)
(1,235,467)
(1,590,325)

(11,429,774)
(1,540,536)
(2,425,449)
(1.013,261)

(987,474)
(8,715,974)
(6,708,760)

(646,576)
718,841

(76,518,598)

(76,518,598)

70,52],283
2,129,824

6,247.122

240,39!

79,138,620

2,620,022

22,618,396

$...„..............-..-25^38,4^_

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES

$ - s

254,034
79,933

(27,100)

306,867

306.867

22,445

22,445

329,312
759,973

1,089,285 $

TOTAL

(27,377,001)
(12,829,847)

(736,995)
(1,235,467)
(1,590,325)

(11,429,774)
(1,540,536)
(2,425,449)
(1,013,261)

(987,474)
(8,715,974)
(6,708,760)

(646,576)
718,841

(76,518,598)

254.034
79,933

.-(27.100)

306,867

f76,211,731)

70,521,283
2,129,824

6,247,122

262,836

79,161,065

2,949,334
23,378,36?

.26,327J03

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBFTB-1

WALL TOWNSmP BOARB OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30,2823

MAJOR FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash Held with Fiscal Agents

Receivables. Net;

Due 'from Other Governments:

Federal

State

Local

Other Receivables

Restricted Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES &. FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Cash Deficit
Accounts Payable

Intergovernmental Payable:

Slate

loteriuad Payable
Unearned Revenue

Other Current Liabilities

Paycull Deductions & Wilhhoidings

Unemployment Liability

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances:

Restricted for:

Capital Reserve

Maintenance Reserve

Emergency Reserve

Unemployment Reserve

Schuiarship Reserve

Student Activities Reserve

Capital Projects
Debt Service

Assigned to:

Other Purposes

Designated far Subsequect

Year's Expenditures

Uaassigncd

Total Fund Balances

Toial Liabilities & Fund Balances

GENERAL
FUND

$ 4,132,622
243.420

1,377,433

99,551
7,917,466

SPECIAL,
REVENUE

FUND

s

580,845

30,454

2,666

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

FUND

s

DEBT
SERVICE

FUND

$ 8,596

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS

£ -!,i41,2l8

243,420

580,845
1,377,433

30,454
102,217

7,917,466

13,770,492 $ 613,965 S S,S96 $

876,908

4,70S
70,594

901,956
1,048

136,435

141,091 S
20.777

2,666
66,592

27,802

453,774 S

1,991,649 258,928 453,774

5,540,152

1,709,613

381,933
285,768

38,461
3 i 6,576

(453,774)
8,596

292,923

],ti04J34
1,963.720

]!,778,843 355,037 (453,774) 8,596

)3,770>492 £ 613,965 S 8,596

Amounts reported fw gmenmiental aclivilies in the statement of net position (A-i) are different because:

Capita) assets used in governmental activities are not financiaJ resourecs and therefore

are not reported in the fands. The cost of the assets is 574,377,882 and the

accumulaled depreciation is S35,564,797,

Deferred oulftows and inflows of resources related to pensions and deferred charges

or credits on debt refunding are applicable to ruture reporting periods and therefore

are not reported ia (he funds.

Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions

Defeired Inflows Related fo Pensions

Defeired Outflow Related to the Loss on Bond Refunding of Debt

Accrued interest cm long-term debt is not due and payabie in the current period and

therefore is not reported as a liability in the funds.

Accrued pension contributions for the June 30,2023 p!an year are not paid with current

economic resources and are therefore not reported as a liability ill the funds, but are

included in accounts payable in the govern men E-wide statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities, inctuding net pension liability an bonds payable, ace not due and

payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.

Net Position ofGovemmeataI Activities

14,393.053

594,865

897.685

2,666

71,300
98,396

901,956
1,048

136,435

2,704,351

5,540,152
[,709,613

381,933
285,768

38,461
3 i 6,576

(453,774)
8,596

292,923

1,604,734

1,963,720

11,688,702

38,324,321

2,635,603
(3,061,856)

16,050

(61,005)

(1,539,837)

(22,763,560)

25,238,418

The accompanying Notes to Finauciiil Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT B-2

MAJOR FUNDS

GENERAL
FUND

SPECIAL
REVENUE

FUND

CAPITAL
PROJECTS

FUND

DEBT
SERVICE

FUND

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL

FUNDS
Revenues:

Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy

Tuition Charges

Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Current Expenditures:

Instruction:

Regular Instanction

Special Education Instruction

VocEtdonal Education

Other Instruction
School Sponsored CoCurricular/AEhlctics

Support Services:
Attendance & Social Work Services

Health Services

Student & Insiruction Related Services

General Administrative

School Adniimstrative Services
Central Services

Administrative Information Technology

Plant Operations & Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Unallocated Benefits

On BeiiatfTPAF Pension and Soda]

Security Contributions

Transfer to Charter Schools

Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest & Other Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures

Net Changes in Fund Balances
Fund Balance, Juiy 1

Fund Balance, June 30

70,521,283 $
1,114,511

240,391

22,678,982
10,349,643

594,522
996,632

1,282.891

676,614

859,600

6,190,259

1,242,727

3,191,646
817,382
796,581

7,315,064
5,411,855

16,427,279

17,532,808

521,583

1,464,999

$ 2,129,824 $

749,689

1,576,12)

1,493,752

453,774

72,651,107

1,114,511

990,080

71,876,185

23,735,073
44,857

95,656, f 15

749,689

294,005
2,063,475

3,107,169

2,129,824

728,457

2,858,281

74,755,698

24,757,535
2,108,332

101,621,565

24,255,103

10,349,643

594,522
996,632

1,282,891

676,614
859,600

7,684,011
1,242,727
3,191,646

817,382
796,581

7,315,064

5,411,855

16,427,279

17,532,808
521,583

3.918.773

7,780

98,358,847

(2,702,732)

(2,702,732)
14,481,575

..$................ t.L778^43_S,

3,069,873

37,296

37,296

317,741

355j}37__$_

453,774

(453,774)

(453,774)

(453.774) $

2,657,224

192,461

2,849,685

8,596

8,596

8,596 $

2,657,224

200,241

104.732,179

(3,110,614)

(3,110,614)
14,799,316

11,688,702

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B-3

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Total Net Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (B-2) S (3,110,614)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of

activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which depreciation exceeded capital outlays in the period.

Depreciation Expense $ (2,159,249)
Capital Outlays 1,918,773

(240,476)
Governmental funds report Schooi District pension contributions as expenditures. However ID the

statement of activities, the cost of pension benefits earned is reported as pension expense. This is the

amount by which pension benefits earned exceeded the School District's pension contributions in

the current period. 3,015,403

Repayment of long-term debt principal and obligation of tease purchase agreements are an expenditure

in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement ofuet

position and is not reported in the statement of activities. 3,009307

Govemmenfai fimds report the effect of premiums, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas

these amounts are deterred and amortized in the statement of activities. The net effect of these

transactions is as follows:

Amortization of Premium on Bonds 141,777

Amortization of Loss on Bond Refunding .. (22,919)

118,858

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities is accraed,

regardless of when due. la the governmental funds, interest is reported when due. The accmed

interest is an addition in die reconciliation (+). 71,767

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences (vacations) are

measured by the amounts earned during the year. In the govemmenta! fauds, however, expenditures

for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the earned amount

exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when tlie paid amount

exceeds the earned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+). (244,223)

Change in Net Position ofGovenmieatal Activities $ 2,620,022

The accompanyiug Notes to Fmancial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT B-4

MAJOR FUND

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:

Federal
State
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

luterfund Receivable

Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets, Net

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Ciureat Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Unearned Revenue

Total Current Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTfVITIES -
ENTERPRISE

FUNDS

FOOD
SERVICE

BEFORE AND
AFTER SCHOOL

PROGRAMS
CHROME

BOOKS TOTALS

775,377 $

54,009
2,495

30,010
5,785

195,696

155
41,290

867,676

1,296 $
32,692

33,988

21,905
833,688

855,593 $

237,141

6,500

6,500

230,641

..230,641 1.

3,051 $

3,051

3,051

974,124

54,009
2,495

155
71,300
5,785

1,107,868

598,277

(576,372)

21,905

21,905

$ 889,581 S 237,141 $ 3,051 $

598,277

(576,372)

21,905

21,905

1,129,773

1,296
39,192

40,488

21,905
1,067,380

3,051 $ 1,089,285

The accompanying Notes to Fioancial Statemeats are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT B-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services;

Daily Sales - Reimbiursable Programs
Daily Sales -Nou-Reimbursable Programs

Program Fees

Miscellaneous

Tota! Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses;
Cost of Sales - Reimbursable Programs
Cost of Sales - Non Reimbursabte
Salaries
Employee Benefits
Supplies and Materials
Depreciation
Purchased Property Services
Other •

Tuta! Operating Expenses

Operating Incame/(Luss)

Nouopcrating Revenues (Expenses):
State Sources:

State School Lunch Program
State School Breakfast Program

Federal Sources;

National School Lunch Program
National School Breakfast Program
Food Distribution Program
Supply Chain Assistance Program

Interest Revenue

Total Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenscs)

Change it) Net Position

Total Net Position - Beginning

Tuiai Net Position - Ending

MAJOR FUND

FOOD
SERVICE

$ 2,012

1,056,805

20,346

1,079,163

335,418
227,427
517,614
189,044
60,377
17.418

36,914

1,384,212

(305,049)

13,977
516

281,296
27,876
78,769

156,649
3,438

562,521

257,472

598,12E

S 855,593

BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES.
ENTERPRISE

FUNDS
BEFORE AND

AFTER SCHOOL
PROGRAMS

s - s

389,251

389,251

188,526
37,682

1,186

80,340
1,984

309,318

79,933

18,871

18,871

98.804

131,837

$ 230.641 $

CHROME
BOOKS

s

2,400

2,400

29,500

29.500

-(27,100)..

136

136

(26,964)
30,015

3,051 S

TOTALS

2,012
1,056,805

389,251
22,746

1,470,814

335,418
227,427
705,740
226,726

91,063
17,418,00

80,340
38,898

1.723,030

.-(252.216)-

! 3,977
536

281,296
27.876
78,769

156,649
22,445

581,528

329.312

759,973

1,089,285

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an irttegrai part of this statement.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT B-6

MAJOR FUND

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Receipts from Customers

Payments to Employees

Payments for Employee Benefits

Payments to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Aciivities

Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing ActiviEies;
State Sources

Federal Sources

Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Noncapital
Financing Activities

Casi) Flows From Investing Actvities:
Capita) Assets
Interest

Net Cash Provided by/(Uscd for) Investing
Activities

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balances -Beginning of Year

Balances - End of Year

BUSINESS-nTE
ACTIVITIES -
ENTERPRISE

FUNDS
BEFORE AND

FOOD AFTER SCHOOL CHROME
SERVICE PROGRAMS BOOKS TOTALS

1,079,810
(517,614)
(189,044)
(616,333)

(243, f 8 n

14,493
465,821

480.314

395,875 S
088,126)
(37,682)
(85,943)

84,124

2,400 S

(29,500)

(27, i 00)

1,478,085
(705,740)
(226,726)
(731,776)

(186,157)

14,493
465,821

480,314

(4,550)
3,438

(1,112)

236,021

539,356

$ 775,377 $

18,871

18,871

102,995

92,701

195,696 $

136

i 36

(26,964)
30,015

3,051 S

(4,550)
22,445

17,895

312,052
662,072

974. i 24

Reconciliation of Operating Income/(Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Income/(Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income/(Loss)
to Net Cash Provided by/(Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation
Food Distribution PragraEi
(Increase)/Decrease in Accounts Receivable, Net

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts Receivable

(Increase)/Decrease in Interflind AccounEs Receivable

Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned Revenue
Increass/(Decrease) in Accounts Payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided/(Used) by Operating Activities

(305,049) $

17,418
78,769

32,669
(4,914)

(30,010)

79,933 S

123

1

(27,100) $ (252,216)

17,418
78,769
32.792

(4,914)
1

(30,010)

(30,052)

61,868

i__^^^^^^^

6,500

(2,433)

4,191

84.124 $ (27,100) S

4,488

<32,485)

66.059

(186,357^

The accompanying Notes to Financial Stalcments arc an intcgra! part of this statcmcnt-
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Wall Township School District (hereafter referred to as the "School District")
have been prepared m conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its pronouncements (Statements

and Interpretations).

Reporting Entity

The School District is a Type II district located in the County ofMonmouth, State of New Jersey. As a Type II
district, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education. The Board is comprised of
nine members appointed to three-year terms. These terms are staggered so that three members' terms expire each

year. The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grades levels K through 12. These

include regular, vocational, as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The School District has an

approximate enrollment at June 30, 2023 of 3,214 students.

The primary criterion for including activities within the School District's reportmg entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

• the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued m their own name);

• the School District holds the corporate powers of the organization;

• the School District appoints a votiag majority of the organization's board

• the School District is able to impose its will on the organization;

• the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the School District
• there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the School District.

There were no additional entities required to be included m the reporting entity under the criteria as described
above. Furthermore, the School District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such

criteria.

Com&onentUni^

GASB Statement No.14. Tlie Financial Reporting Entity, provides guidance that all entities associated with a

primary government are potential component units and should be evaluated for inclusion in the financial

reporting entity. A primary government is financially accountable not only for the organizations that make up its

legal entity but also for legally separate organizations that meet the criteria established by GASB Statement No.
14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units ,

and GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omms - an Amendment ofGASB Statements No.

14 and No. 34, GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for certain component Units - an Amendment

ofGASB Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and

Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan- an Amendment of

GASB Statements No, 14 and No. 84. The School District had no component units as of for the year ended June

30,2023.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JtFNE 30, 2023 (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of AccQimtms* Measurement Focus and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounts of the School District are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate

accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancmg accounts

that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity,

revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted

for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending
activities are controlled.

A. Government-Wide Financial Statemeitts

The School District's Govemment-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net Position and a

Statement of Activities. These statements present summaries of Governmental and Business-Type Activities for

the School District accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the School District are not included in
these statements.

These statements are presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus and the accrual basis of

accounting. Accordingly, all of the School District's assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and

deferred inflows of resources, mcluding capital assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the Statement of

Net Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of accounting,

revenues are recognized In the period in which they are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in

which the liability is incurred, regardless of the dming of related cash flows. The types of transactions reported

as program revenues for the School District are reported in three categories: 1) charges for services, 2) operating

grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as

general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all property taxes.

Certain eliminations have been made to interfund activities, payables, and receivables. All internal balances in

the Statement of Net Position have been eliminated except those representing balances between the

governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated

in the total primary government column. In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund transactions have

been eliminated; however, those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been

elunmated.

B. Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund fmancial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. The School

District has presented all major funds that met those qualifications.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

All governmental funds are accounted for ou a spending or "current financial resources" measurement focus and

tlie modified accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on

the Balance Sheets. (The School District's deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources are

noncurrent.) The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances present increases

(revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other fmasciag uses) in net current

assets. Under the modified accrual basis of accountitig, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in

which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly,

revenues are recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 60 days after

year-end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to

accrual by the School District, are property tax and intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures are recorded in the

accounting period in which the related fund liability Is incurred. However, debt service expenditures, as well as

expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is

due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term

debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.

Interest on invested funds is recognized when earned. Intergovernmental revenues that are reimbursements for

specific purposes or projects are recognized in the period m which the expenditures are recorded. All other

revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the School District.

Transfers between governmental funds are recorded when the related liability is incurred. These transfers do not

represent revenues (expenditures) to the School District and are, therefore, reported as other financing sources

(uses) m the governmental fund financial statements.

Since the fund level statements are presented using a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than

the govemment-wide statements, a reconciliation is presented on the page following each fund level statement

that summarizes the adjustments necessary to convert the fund level statements into the govemment-wide

presentations.

The School District funds outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and unrestricted resources. In

order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the govemment-

wide financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are

considered to be applied. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is fhe School

District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. In order to

calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned and uuassigned fund balance m the

governmental fund financial statements a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources

are considered to be applied. It is the School District's policy to consider restricted fand balance to have been
depleted before any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the components of

unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed

by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last.
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The School District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The general fund is the general operating fund of the School District and is used to

accomit for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are

certain expenditures for vehicles and movable mstructional or noninstructional equipment which are

classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey Department of Education the School District includes budgeted capital
outlay in this fund. Generally accepted accounting principles as they pertain to governmental entities

state that general fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived

improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,

interest earnings and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of

or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of

buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase ofbiult-m equipment.

Special Revenue Fund - The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific

revenue from state and federal government, other than major capital projects, debt service or proprietary

funds, and local appropriations that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources

that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for the acquisition of constmction of major

capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. The financial resources are derived from

New Jersey School Development Authority grants, temporary notes, capital leases, or serial bonds that

are specially authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the annual

election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of financial

resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for the payment of general long-

term debt principal, interest and related costs of governmental funds.

C. PrQRnetar^FundFmanu

Proprietary fand fmancial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, Expenses

and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund and for the

non-major funds aggregated.
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Proprietary funds are accounted for using tfae "economic resources" measurement focus and the accmal basis of

accounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities (whether current or noncurrent),

and deferred inflows of resources are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net

position. Under the accmal basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned

while expenses are recognized in the period m which the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related

cash flows.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary operations of

the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that

are essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as non-operating expenses.

The School District reports the following major proprietary funds:

Food Service Fund - The food service fund accounts for fhe fmancial transactions related to the food

service operations of the School District.

Before & After School Programs Fund - The before and after school programs fund accounts for the

activities of the School District's before and after school program which provides summer classes to

students in preparation for the upcoming school year and other before and after school programs.

Chrome Book Fund - The Chrome Book fund accounts for self-insurance on chrome books loaned out

to students.

O. Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statement of Changes

in Fiduciary Net Position. The School District's fiduciary funds include Custodial Funds, which are used to
report fiduciary activities where the School District controls assets that are collected on behalf of other entides.

These assets are not held In a trust and are distributed m accordance with applicable policies. The Custodial

Funds are accounted for on a spending or "economic resources" measurement focus and the accmal basis of

accounting in accordance with GASBS No. 84, Fiduciary Activities .

The School District has no fiduciary funds.
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Budffets/Budsetarv Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt

service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county office. In accordance with P.L.2011 c.202, which

became effective January 17, 2012, the School District eluninated the April annual voter referendum on budgets
which met the statutory tax levy cap limitations and the board of education members are elected at the November

general election. Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of

budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the

lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referenced in

N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2-2(f)l. Transfers of appropriations may be made by School Board resolution at any time during

the fiscal year in accordance with N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2-11.

Format budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the

year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and

generally accepted accounting principles with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the

one or more June state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and the special revenue fund as noted below.

Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the governmental

fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-eud.

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accomiting budgetary basis. The

grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes

encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not.

Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation ofGAAP basis financial reports.

The budget, as detailed on Exhibit C"l, Exhibit C-2, and Exhibit 1-3, includes all amendments to the adopted

budget, if any.

Exhibit C-3 presents a reconciliation of the general fund revenues and special revenue fund revenues and

expenditures from the budgetary basis of accounts as presented in the general fund budgetary comparison

schedules and die special revenue fund budgetary comparison schedule to the GAAP basis of accounting as

presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Note tliat the School District does not report encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year-end as expenditures in the

general fund since the general fund budget follows modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue

recognition policy for the last state aid payments.

Encumbrances

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of

resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental

funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as assigned fund balances at fiscal year-end as they do not

constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and

services.
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Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the School District has received advances are

reflected in the balance sheet as a reduction of the accounts receivables or as unearned revenue at fiscal year-

end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. Aa entry will be made at the

beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding
encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year-end.

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash iu banks and all highly liquid investments with
a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest. U.S.

Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when purchased

are considered cash equivalents and stated at cost.

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types offmancial institutions they may
invest in. N.J.S.18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investEuents that may be purchased by New Jersey

school districts.

N.J.S.AJ 7:9-41 et. Seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The

statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds are

secured m accordance with the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in

1970 to protect governmental units irom loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

Public depositories include Savmgs and Loan institutions, banks (both state and national banks) and savings
banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a

market value at least equal to five percent of die average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the

deposits of governmental units. If a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all

other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units.

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the School District considers all highly liquid investments

(including restricted assets) with a maturity when purchased of three months or less and all local government

investment pools to be cash equivalents.

TwtioH Receivable/Payable

Tuition rates were established by the receiving School District based on estimated costs. The charges are subject

to adjustment when the actual costs are determined.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost, using the first-m/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs of inventories are recorded as

expenditures when consumed rather when purchased.
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Restricted Assets

Certain assets are classified as restricted on the balance sheet because they are maintained in separate bank

accounts held by fiscal agents and their use is limited by Lease-Purchase Agreements and working capital

amounts stipulated by health insurance agreements.

Interfund Reeeivables/Pavables

Interfand receivables/payables represent amounts that are owed, other than charges for goods or services

rendered to/from a particular fund in the School District and that are due within one year. As previously

mentioned, these amounts are eliminated in the governmental and business-type columns of the Statement of Net

Position, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental and busmess-type activities, which are

presented as Internal Balances in the Statement of Net Position.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the govemment"

wide financial statements. Purchased or constructed assets are recorded at actual cost or estimated historical cost

if actual cost is unavailable. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value. All reported capital assets

except land and construction in progress are depreciated. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not

add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. The School District does not

possess any infrastructure. The School District has established a threshold of $2,000 for capitalization of

depreciable assets.

Capital assets of the School District are depreciated or amortized using the straight-line method over the

following estimated useful lives:

Governmental

Activities

Description Estimated Lives

Land Improvements 15-20 Years

Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20 Years

Heavy Equipment 10-20 Years

Furniture and Equipment 6-1 0 Years

Computer Equipment 5 Years

Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation, sick leave and

sabbatical leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and that

are not coDtingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, is

accmed as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences tliat relate to fuhire services, or

that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the School District and its employees, are

accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

The entire compensated absences liability is reported on the govemment-wide financial statements and

proprietary fund financial statements. Compensated absences liability is not recorded in the governmental iunds.

Instead expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds as payments come due each period, for example,

as a result of resignations or retirements.
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Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied and

is recorded as a liability until fhe revenue is both measureable and the School District is eligible to realize the
revenue.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Oblisations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported in the govemment-wide fmancial

statements, and all payabies, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations payable from proprietary funds are

reported on the proprietary fund financial statements, hi general, government fund payables and accmed

liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from current financial resources, are

reported as obligations of the funds. However, claims and judgments, compensated absences, special termination

benefits and contractually required pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds, are reported

as a liability in the fund fmaacial statements only to the extent that they are normally expected to be paid with
expendable available financial resources.

Accountine Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumption that affect certain reported

amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying note disclosures. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Interfund Activity

Transfers between governmental and business-type activities on the govemment-wide statements are reported m

the same manner as general revenues. Exchange transactions between funds are reported as revenues in the seller

funds and as expenditures/expenses In the purchaser funds. Flows of cash or goods from one fund to another

without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers are reported as other

fiuancmg sources/uses in governmental funds and after aon-operating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.

Reimbursements from funds responsible for particular expenditures/expenses to the funds that initially paid for

them are not presented on the financial statements. As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been

eliminated from the govemment-wide financial statements.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows

of resources. This separate fmancial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a

consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of

resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred

inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an

acquisition of net position that applies to a future periods and so will not be recognized as an mflow of resources

(revenue) until that time.

63



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023 (Continued)

Note 1. Summary of SignijRcant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred Loss on Refundine Debt

Deferred loss on refunding debt arising from the issuance of the refunding bonds is recorded as deferred

outflows of resources. It is amortizedma systematic and rational manner over the shorter of the duration of the

related debt or the new debt issues as a component of interest expense.

Bond Premiums. Discounts aud Issuance Costs

In the govemment-wide financial statements and in the proprietary fund financial statements, bond premiums

and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds

payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed when

bonds are issued.

In governmental fund financial statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as debt issuance costs are

recognized m the current period. The face amount of the debt is reported as other fmancing sources. Premiums

received on debt issuance are also reported as other financing sources. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld

from the actual debt proceeds, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position

of the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) and Teacher's Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and
additions to/deductions from the PERS's and TPAF's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same

basis as they are reported by the plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee

contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are

reported at fair value.

Fund Balance

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental

Fund Type Definitions, fund balances in the governmental funds financial statements are classified into the

following five categories, as defined below:

Non-soendable - This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because &ey are either not in

spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Non-spendable items are

not expected to be converted to cash or are not expected to be converted to cash within the next year.

Restricted - This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of

the resources either externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors,

contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional

provisions or enabling legislation.
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Committed - This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to

constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Education. These amounts cannot be used for any

other purpose unless the Board of Education removes or changes the specified use by taking the same

type of action (resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committed. This classification

also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically

committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned - This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the School District's intent to be

used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the

Board of Education or through the Board of Education delegating this responsibility to the business
administrator through the budgetary process.

Unassigned - This classification includes the residual fund balance for the General Fund. The Unassigned

classification also includes negative residual firnd balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be

eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund balance amounts.

Wlien an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is

available, it is the School District's policy to consider restricted fands to have been spent first. When an

expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balances are available, it is the

School District's policy to consider amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned

funds, and finally unassigned funds, as needed, unless the Board has provided otherwise in its commitment or

assignment actions.

Net Position

Net position, represents the difference between summation of assets and deferred outflows of resources, and the

summadon of liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is classified into the following three

components:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - This components represents capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, net of outstanding balances of borrowings used for acquisition, construction, or

improvement of those assets.

Restricted - This component of net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed

on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the School District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted - This component of net position is reported as unrestricted when it does not meet the

criteria of the other two components of net position.

Subsequent Events

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2023 and

February 2, 2024, the date that the financial statements were available for issuance, for possible disclosure and

recognition in the financial statements.
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Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Principles

Adopted Accguntmg Pronouncements

The following GASB Statements became effective for fee fiscal year ended June 30,2023:

* Statement No. 96, Subscription -Based Information Technology Arf'angements.

• Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022.

Management has determined the implementation these Statements did not have a significant impact on the Districts'

fmancial statements.

Accounting PronQuncements Effective in Future ReDortmg Penods

The following GASB Statements will become effective in future fiscal periods:

* Statement No. 100, Accounimg Changes and Ef'ror Corrections- an amendment ofGASB Statement No. 62.

The effective date is for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023.

* Statement No. 101 , Compensated Absences. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years

beginning after December 15, 2023.

Management has tiot yet determi&ed the the potential impact on the District s financial statements.

Note 2. Deposits and Investments

Denosits

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Board's deposits may not be

recovered. Although the Board does not have a formal policy regarding custodial credit risk, NJSA 17:9-41 etseq. requires

that the governmental units shall deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of
GUDPA. Under the Act, the first $250,000 of governmental deposits m each msured depository is protected by FDIC.

Public fund owned by the Board in excess of FDIC insured amounts are protected by GUDPA. However, GUDPA does

not protect intermingied trust funds such as salary withlioldings, student activity fund or other funds that may pass to the

Board relative to the happening of a future condition. Such funds are shown as Uninsured and Uncollateralized in the

schedule below. As of June 30, 2023, the School District's bank balance of $16,719,539 was exposed to custodial credit

risk as follows:

Insured under FDIC and GUDPA $ 13,814,225

Uninsured and UncollateraHzed 2,905,3 f4

Total $ 16,719,539

Investments

The School District had no investments at June 30, 2023.

Note 3. Reserve Accounts

Capital Reserve

A capital reserve accomit was established by the School District. The accumulation of funds will be used for capital outlay

expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is

included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects m the School District's approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the department, a School District may increase the balance in the

capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board

resolution at year-end (June 1 to June 30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpeaded line-item appropriation amounts, or

both. A School District may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained

either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant

N.J.S.AJ9:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C.6:23A-14.](g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local

support costs ofuncompleted capital projects m its approved LRFP.
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The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July I, 2022 $ 4,893,128

Increased by:

Interest Earnings

Deposits Approved by Board

Decreased by:

Budget Withdrawals

2

7

2

4,

,743,

,640,

,000

,024

,152

,100,000

Ending Balance, June 30, 2023 $ 5,540,152

Maintenance Reserve

A maintenance reserve account was established by the District. The accumulation of funds will be used for

required maintenance of school facilities expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The maintenance reserve is

maintained in the General Fund and its activity is included m the General Fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the maintenance reserve account are restricted to required maintenance activities for a school

facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan. A School District may increase the balance in the

maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds in fbe annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by

transfer by Board resolution at year-end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation

amounts, or bofh. The balance in the account cannot at any time exceed four percent of the replacement cost of

the school district s school facilities for the current year.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Balance, July I, 2022 $ 2,031,378

Increased by:

Interest Earnings 500

Deposits Approved by Board 277,735

2,309,613
Decreased by:

Budget Withdrawals 600,000

Ending Balance, June 30, 2023 $ 1,709,613
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Note 3. Reserve Accounts (Continued)

Emer^encv Reserve

Au emergency reserve account was established by the School District. The accumulation of funds will be used to finance unanticipated
General Fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education in subsequent fiscal years.

The activity of the emergency reserve for the July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning Baiance, July 1, 2022 $ 790,400

Increased by:

Interest Earnings

Deposits Approved by Board

Decreased by:
Budget Withdrawals

Eiiding Balance, June 30, 2023

UaemplQYmentClaim Reserve

500
42,285

833,185

451,252

$ 381,933

Unemployment Claim Reserve funds are restricted pursuant to NJ.S.A. 43:21-7.3(g), which requires that employer and empjoyee

contributions be held in a trust fund maintained by the governmental entity or instrumentality for unemployment benefit cost purposes
and any surplus remaining in this fcrust fund must be retained in reserve for payment of benefit costs in subsequent years.

The activity of the unemployment claim reserve for the July 1,2022 to June 30, 2023 fiscal year is as folfows:

Beginning Balance, July 1, 2022 $ 283,798

Increased by:

Interest Earnings 1,970

Ending Balance, June 30,2023 $ 285,768

Note 4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2023 consisted of accounts and intergovernmental grants. AH receivables are considered collectible in

fail due to the stable condition of state and federal programs, the current fiscal year guarantee of federal funds and the budgetary
control of New Jersey governmental entities. Accounts receivable in the School District's governmental and business-type activities as

of June 30, 2023, consisted of the following:

Governmental Funds

Description

Federal Awards

State Awards

Other

Total

Descdetion

Federal Awards

State Awards

Other

Total

General

Fund

$ - $

1,377,433

99,551

$ 1,476,984 $

Special

Revenue

Fund

G 580,845 $

33,120

? 613,965 $

Proprietary Funds

Food Service

Fund

$ 54,009 $
2,495

$ 56,504 $

Before And
After School

Programs Fund

s - $

155

? 155 $

Total

GovernmeQtal

Activities

580,845
1,377,433

132,671

2,090,949

Total

Busisess-Type

Activities

54,009

2,495

155

56,659
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Note 5. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows:

Governmental Activities

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land
Construction in Progress

Total Capital Assets not being depreciated

Capital Assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Building Improvements
Improvemeats Other Than Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:

Buildings and Building Improvements
Improvements Other Than Buildings

Machinery and Equipment
Total Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net

Total Govermueatal Activities Capital
Assets, net

Business-Type Activities:

Machinery and EquipmenC
Total Capital Assets being depreciated

Less: Accumulated Depreciation:

Machinery and Equipment

Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net

Total Business-Type Activities Capital

Assets, net

Balance

July 1,
2022

$ 534,652 S

534,652

59,637,070
2,280,531

11,925,629
73,843,230

(25,162,319)
(2,054,089)
(8,596,677)

(35,813,085)

38,030,145

$ 38,564,797 3

Balance

July 1,
2022

$ 593,727 S
593,727

(558,954)
(558,954)

$ 34,773 3

Retirements

Additious and Transfers

> - $ - $

453,774
453,774

1,347,039

117,960
1,464,999

(1,492,620)
(25,100)

(641,529)
(2,159,249)

(694,250)

; (240,476) $ - $

Busisess-Type Activities

Retirements

Additions and Transfers

; 4,550 $ - $
4,550

(17,418)
(17,418)

; (12,868) $ - $

Balance

June 30,

2023

534,652
453,774
988,426

60,984,109
2,280,531

12,043,589
75,308,229

(26,654,939)
(2,079,189)
(9,238,206)

(37,972,334)

37,335,895

38,324,321

Balance

June 30,

2023

598,277
598,277

(576,372)
(576,372)

21,905
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Note 5. Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to fuactions/programs of the School District as follows:

Governmental Activities

Instruction:

Regular Instruction $

Special Education Instruction

Vocational Education

Other Instmction

School Sponsored CocurricuIar/Athletics

Support Services:

Student & Instruction Related Services

General Administrative

School Administrative Services

Central Services

Administrative lafo. Technology

Plant Operations & Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities

Business-Type Activities

Food Service Fund

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities

Note 6. Interfund Receivables, Payabies and Transfers

Individual fund receivables/payables balances at June 30, 2023 are as follows:

793,577
338,619

19,452

32,608
41,974

301,667

40,659
104,424

26,743

26,062

239,334
177,065

2,142,184

12,868

3,071,006

Fund

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Before and After-School Programs

Food Service Fund

Interfund

Receivables

$

41,290
30,010

$ 71,300

Interfund

Pavables

$ 4,708
66,592

$ 71,300

The interfund receivables and payables above predominately resulted from payment made by certain funds on

behalf of other funds. All interfand balances are expected to be repaid within one year.

There were no iateriund transfers for fhe year ended June 30, 2023.
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Note 7. Long-Term Obligations

During the fiscal year-ended June 30, 2023 the following changes occurred in long-term obligations for the governmental
and business-type activities:

Balance

Governmental Activities:

Bonds Payable

Financed Purchases Payable

Unamortized Bond

Premiums

Compensated Absences

Net Pension Liability

Balance

July 1. 2022

$ 5,065,000 3

842,015

239,408
1,495,648

14,235,439

$ 21,877,510 3

Additions

244,223

8,895,730

; 9,139,953 :

Reductions

S 2,655,000

354,307

141,777

5,102,819

E 8,253,903

Balance

June 30. 2023

$ 2,410,000

487,708

97,631

1,739,871

18,028,350

S 22,763,560

Due Within

One Year

$ 2,410,000

274,890

97,631

$ 2,782,521

For governmental activities, the bonds payable are liquidated from the School District's debt service fund. Compensated
absences, finance purchases, unamortized bond premiums and the net pension liability are liquidated by the general fund.

Bonds Payable

The voters of the municipality through referendums authorize bonds in accordance with State Law. All bonds are retired in
serial installments within the statutory period ofusefuhiess.

During July 2012, the School District issued $3,790,000 of Pension Refiindmg Bonds. The Pension Refunding Bonds were
issued at an interest rate of 4.202% and matured on August 18,2022.

During April 2015, the School District issued $17,515,000 of School Refunding Bonds. The School Refunding Bonds were
issued at interest rates varying from 4.000% to 5.000% and matures on July 15, 2023.
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Fiscal Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2024 $ 2,410,000 $ 60,250 $ 2,470,250

Financed Purchases Payable

The School District has finance purchase agreements for buses and equipment. All finance purchase agreements

arc for terms of five years. The following is a schedule of the remaining future minimum paymen£s under these

finance purchase agreements and the present value of the net minimum payments at June 30, 2023:

Fiscal Year Ending
June 30.

2024 $
2025
2026

Total

281,821
170,000
45,708

Total Minimum Lease Payments 497,529

Less: Amount Representing Interest (9,821)

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments $ 487,708

Amortization of the financed equipment and improvements under capital assets is included with depreciation

expense.

Bonds Authorized but not Issued

As of June 30, 2023, the School District had no bonds authorized but not issued.
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Note 8. Pension Plans

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS)

Plan Description - The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) Is a cost-sharing

multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions

and Benefits (the Division). For additional information about PERS, please refer to Division's Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) which can be found at http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-
reports. shtmL

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43: ISA . PERS provides retirement, death and disability

benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of

service or under the disability provisions ofPERS.

The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition

I Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007

2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2, 2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 201 0

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28,2011

Service retirement benefits of 1/55 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers 1

and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of

1/60 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62

and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before

reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit and tier 5 with 30 or more

years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a

member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance with

their respective tier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least

25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 1 0 years of service credit and

have not reached the service retkement age for the respective tier.

Contributions - The contribytion policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions by active
members and contributing employers. State legislation has modified the amount that is contributed by the State.

The State's pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer

portion of the normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accmed liability. Funding for noncontributory

group insurance benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2022, the State's pension contribution

was less than the actuarial determined amount.
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The local employers contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined rate which includes the normal

cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L. 2009 provided an option for local employers ofPERS to

contribute 50% of the normal and accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments due in State

fiscal year 2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any such amounts will not be

included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement

systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability cootributions provided under this law. This

uafimded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years begmning

with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be adjusted by the rate of return on the

actuarial value of assets.

Pension Liability, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/lufiows of Resources - At June 30, 2023, the

School District reported a liability of $18,028,350 for its proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The total pension liability used to calculate the net

pension liability was detemiined using update procedures to roll forward the total pension liability from an

actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, to the measurement date of June 30, 2022. The School Districts

proportion of the net pension liabiiity was based on the School District's actual contributions to the plan relative

to the total of all participating employers' contributions for the year ended June 30, 2022. The School District's

proportion measured as of June 30, 2022, was 0.119461%, which was a decrease of 0.0007045132% from its

proportion measured as of June 30,2021.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the School District recognized full accmal pension credit of $1,486,301 in the

government-wide financial statements. This pension credit was based on the pension plans June 30, 2022

measurement date. At June 30, 2022 the School District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources related to PEjtS from the following sources:

Differences between Expected

and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Net Difference between Projected

and Actual Earnings on Pension

Plan Investments

Changes in Proportion and Differences

between School District Contributions

and Proportionate Share of Contributions

Schooi District contributions subsequent

to measurement date

Deferred Outflows

of Resources

$ 130,120

55,858

746,177

163,611

1,539,837

2,635,603

Deferred Inflows

of Resources

$ 114,748

2,699,558

247,550

3,061,856

$1,539,837 reported as deferred outflows of resources resulting from school district contributions subsequent to

the measurement date is estimated based on unadjusted 2022-2023 total salaries for PERS employees multipiied

by an employer pension contribution rate of 17.11%. The payable is due on April 1, 2024 and will be recognized

as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. The other amounts reported as

deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions wilt be recognized in

pension expense as follows:
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Year Ending

June 36,

2023 $ (1,563,242)
2024 (804,654)
2025 (401,015)
2026 821,450
2027 (18,629)

$ (1,966,090)

The amortization of the above other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions will be over the following number of years:

Special Funding Situation - Under N.J.S.A. 43:15A-15, local participating employers are responsible for their

own contributions based on actuarially determmed amounts, except where legislation was passed which legally

obligated the State if certain circumstances occurred. The legislation which legally obligates the State, are

Chapter 366, P.L. 2001 and Chapter 133, P.L. 2001.

The amounts contributed on behalf of the local participating employers under this legislation is considered to be
a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a non-employer

contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute under this legislation directly to the
plan (except for employer specific fmanced amounts), there is no net pension liability to report in the financial

statements of the local participating employers related to this legislation.

However, the notes to the fmancial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion of

the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the collective net pension liability that is

associated with the local participating employer. In addition, each local participating employer must recognize

peusion expense associated with the employers as well as revenue m an amount equal to the nonemployer

contributing entities' total proportionate share of die collective pension expense associated with the local

participatmg employer.

Additionally, the State has no proportionate share of the PERS net pension liability attributable to the District as
of June 30, 2023. At June 30, 2023, the State's proportionate share of the employer pension expense and related

revenue, associated with fhe District, calculated by the plan as of the June 30, 2022 measurement date was

$37,932.
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Actuarial Assumptions - The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2022 measurement date was

determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. This actuarial

valuation used the following assumptions:

Inflation Rate 2.75%

Wage Rate 3.25%

Salary Increases:

2.75 - 6.55%

Based on Years of Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Mortality Rate of Return

PERS Pub-2010 General BeIow-Median Income Employee

mortality table with fully generational mortality

improvement projections from the central year

using Scale MP-2021

Period of Actuarial Experience
Study upon which Actuarial

Assumptions were Based July 1, 2018 - June 30, 2021

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Employee Mortality

Table with an 82.2% adjustment for males and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from

the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-rerirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General

Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment

for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Disability retirement

rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a

127.7% adjustment for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year

of 2010 ou a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience

study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 30,

2022) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of Investments and

Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return

was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return

(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real

rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of

arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022

are summarized in the following table:
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Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term

Expected Real
Rate of Return

U.S. Equity
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity

Emerging Markets Equity
Private Equity

Real Assets

Real Estate

High Yield
Private Credit

Investment Grade Credit

Cash Equivalents

U.S. Treasuries

Risk Mitigation Strategies

27.00%

13.50%

5.50%

13.00%

8.00%

3.00%

4.00%

8.00%

7.00%

4.00%

4.00%

3.00%
100.00%

8.12%

8.38%

10.33%

11.80%

11.19%

7.60%

4.95%

8.10%

3.38%

1.75%

1.75%
4.91%

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2022.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members

will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers and the

aonemployer contributing entity will be based on 100% of the actuarially determined contributions for the State
employer and 100% of actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those

assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit

payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was

applied to all projected benefit payments to determine tiie total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate - The following presents the School District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as

of June 30, 2022, calculated using the discount rate of 7.00% as well as what the School District's proportionate

share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point

lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate;
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At 1%
Decrease

f6.00%)

$ 23,357,300

At Current

Discount Rate

(7.00%)

$ 18,028,350 $

At 1%

Increase

(8.00%^

13,775,819
School District's Proportionate Share

of the Net Pension Liability

Additional Information - The following is a summary of the collective balances of the local group at June 30,

2023 and 2022:

6/30/2023 6/30/2022

Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources

Collective Deferred Inflows of Resources

Collective Net Pension Liability

School District s portion

1,660,772,008 $

3,236,303,935

15,219,184,920

0.11946%

1,164,738,169

8,339,123,762

11,972,782,878

0.12017%

B. Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

Plan Description - The State of New Jersey, Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) is a cost sharing

muttiple-employer defined benefit pension plan with a special-funding situation, by which the State of New

Jersey (the State) is responsible to fund-100% of the employer contributions, excluding any local employer early
retirement incentive (ERI) contributions. TPAF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of Pensions
and Benefits (the Division). For additional informatign about TPAF, please refer to Division's Annual

Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) which can be found at www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-

reports.shtml.

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 18A:66. TPAF provides retirement, death and disability

benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits, which vest after 25 years of

service or under the disability provisions ofTPAF. Members are always fully vested for their own contributions

and, after three years of service credit, become vested for 2% of related interest earned on the contributions. In

the case of death before retirement, members' beneficiaries are entitled to full interest credited to the members'

accounts.

The following represents the membership tiers for TPAF:

Tier

1
2
3
4
5

Definition

Members who were enrolled prior to July 1,2007

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008 and prior to May 22, 2010

Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and prior to June 28, 2011
Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28,2011
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Service retirement benefits of 1/55 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tiers 1

and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3 members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of

1/60 of final average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon reaching age 62

and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement benefits are available to tiers 1 and 2 members before

reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4 before age 62 with 25 or more years of service credit, and tier 5 before age 65 with

30 or more years of service credit. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a member

retires prior to the retirement age for his/her respective tier. Deferred retirement is available to members who

have at least 10 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective tier.

Contributions - The contribution policy for TPAF is set by N.J.S.A 18A:66 and requires contributions by active

members and contributing employers. Pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, the active member

contribution rate increased from 5.5% of annual compensation to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7

years beginning in July 2012. The member contribution rate was 7.5% in State fiscal year 2018. The State's

pension contribution is based on an actuarially determined amount which includes the employer portion of the

normal cost and an amortization of the unfunded accrued liability. Funding for noncontributory group msurasce

benefits is based on actual claims paid. For fiscal year 2022, the State's pension contribution was less than the

actuarial determined amount.

As mentioned previously, the employer ccmtributions for local participating employers are legally required to be

funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, the School District is considered to be m a

special fundmg situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer
contributing entity. Since the School District does not contribute directly to the plan (except for employer

specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or mflows to report in the

financial statements of the local participating employers.

Pension Liability and Pension Expense - The State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability,

attributable to the School District as of June 30, 2022 was $150,067,719. The School District's proportionate
share was $0.

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021, which was rolled forward to

June 30, 2022. The State's proportionate share offhe net pension liability associated with the District was based
on projection of the State's long-term contributions to the pension plan associated with the District relative to the

projected contributions by the State associated with all participating school districts, actuarially detemained. At
June 30, 2022, the State proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability attributable to the School District
was 0.29086039%, which was an increase of 0.0034286472% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2021.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the State of New Jersey recognized a pension expense m the amount of

$4,038,742 for the State's proportionate share of the TPAF pension expense attributable to the School District.
This pension expense was based on the pension plains June 30, 2022 measurement date.

79



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 (Continued)
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Actuarial Assumptions "- The total pension liability for the June 30, 2021 measurement date was determined by

an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2021. This actuarial valuation

used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation Rate

Price 2.75%

Wage 3.25%

Salary Increases:

2.75%-5.65%

Based on Years of Service

Investment Rate of Return 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Employee mortality

table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and 85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from

the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the on the Pub-2010

Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table with a 1 14.7% adjustment for males and 99.6%

adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.

Disability mortality rates were based on the on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a
106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base

year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2021.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience

study for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return " In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return

on plan investments (7.00% at June 30, 2022) is determmed by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the

Directors of the Division of Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the

actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-

estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense

and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term

expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation

percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset

class included m TPAPs target asset allocation as of June 30, 2022 are summarized in the following table:
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Target

Allocation

Long-Term

Expected Real

Rate of Return

Note 8. Pension Plans (Continued)

Asset Class

U.S. Equity

Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity

Emerging Markets Equity
Private Credit

Real Assets

Real Estate

High Yield
Private Credit

Investment Grade Credit

Cash Equivalents

U.S. Treasuries

Risk Mitigation Strategies

Discount Rate " The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00% as of June 30, 2022.

The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members

will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based

on 100% ofactuarially determiued contributions for the State. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary

net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members.

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments

in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the School District's proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate - As previously mentioned, TPAF has a special funding situation where the State pays 100% of

the School District's annual required contribution. The following represents the State's proportionate share of

the net pension liability, attributable to the School District calculated using the discount rate of 7.00% as well as
what the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability, attributable to the School District's would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the

current rate:

27.00%

13.50%

5.50%
13.00%

8.00%

3.00%

4.00%

8.00%
7.00%

4.00%

4.00%

3.00%
100.00%

8.12%

8.38%
10.33%

11.80%

11.19%

7.60%
4.95%

8.10%

3.38%
1.75%

1.75%

4.91%
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At 1%
Decrease

r6.oo%^

$ 175,957,590

At Current
Discount Rate

(7.00%)

$ 150,067,719 $

At 1%
Increase

(8.00%)

128,258,756

State of New Jersey's Proportionate

Share of Net Pension Liability

associated with the School District

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the

Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and additions to/deductions from the TPAF's fiduciary net position have been

determined on the same basis as they are reported by the TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at

fair value.

Additional Information - The following is a summary of the collective balances of the local group at June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Collective Deferred Outflows of Resources

Collective Deferred Inflows of Resources

Collective Net Pension Liability

State's Proportionate Share associated with the District

C. Defined Contribution Retirement Plan (DCRP)

6/30/2023

5,004,259,312

19,682,774,794

51,676,587,303

0.29086%

6/30/2022

6,373,530,834

27,363,797,906

48,165,991,182

0.28823%

Plan Description - The Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) was established July 1, 2007, under the provisions
ofNJ.S-A. 43:15C-1 etseq. The DCRP provides eligible members with a tax-sheltered, defined contribution retirement benefit,

along with life insurance and disability coverage.

Individuals eligible for membership in die DCRP include:

• State or local officials who are elected or appointed on or after July 1 ,2007;

• Employees enrolled in the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) or Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF)
on or after July I, 2007, who earn salary in excess of established "maximum compensation" limits;

• Employees enrolled in the Police and Firemen's Retirement System (PPRS) or State Police Retirement System (SPRS)
after May 21, 2010, who earn salary in excess of established "maximum compensation" limits;

• Employees otherwise eligible to enroll in the PERS or TPAF on or after November 2, 2008, who do not earn the minimum

annual salary for PERS or TPAF Tier 3 enrolhnent but who earn salary of at least $5,000 annually. The minimum salary in 2020
is $8,400 and is subject to adjustment in fuEure years.

• Employees otherwise eligible to enroll in the PERS or TPAF after May 21, 2010, who do not work the minimum number of

hours per week required for PERS or TPAF Tier 4 or Tier 5 enrollment but who earn salary of at least $5,000 annually. The
minimum number is 35 horn's per week for State employees, or 32 hours per week for local government or local educations

employees.
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Note 8. Pension Plans (Continued)

Contributions - The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15C-3 and requires active members and

contribution employers. When enrolled in the DCRP, members are required to contribute 5.5% of their base

salary to a tax-deferred investment account established with Prudential Financial, which jointly administers the

DCRP investments with the Division of Pension and Benefits. Member contributions are matched by a 3%

contribution from the School District.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, employee contributions totaled $36,251, and the School District recognized an

expense for payments made to the Defmed Contribution Retirement program in the amount of $26,733.

Note 9. Other Post-Retirement Benefits

General Information about the OPEB Plan

The State of New Jersey reports a liability as a result of its statutory requirements to pay other postemployment

(health) benefits for State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan. The State Health Benefit

Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan that is administered

on a pay-as-you-go basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying tmst that meets the criteria in

paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for the Postemployment Benefits

OtJwr Than Pensions. The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical,

prescription dmg, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents of local

education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are legally required to be funded by

the State of New Jersey in accordance with N.J.S.A 52:14.17.32f. According to N.J.S.A 52:14- 17.32f, the State

provides employer-paid coverage to employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25

years or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of the following plans: the

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public Employees' Retu-emeat System (PERS), the Police and

Firemen Retirement System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78, P.L,

2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have less than 20 years of credltable

service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in

retirement provided they retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the premium

for which the retiree will be responsible will be determined based on the retiree's annual retirement benefit and

level of coverage.

The total nonemployer OPEB liability does not include certain other postemployment benefit obligations that are

provided by the local education employers. The reporting of these benefits are the responsibility of the individual

local education employers.

Basis of Presentation

The Schedule presents the State of New Jersey's obligation under NJSA 52:14-17.32f. The Schedule does not

purport to be a complete presentation of the financial position or changes in financial position of the State Heaith

Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan or the State of New Jersey. The accompanying Schedule was

prepared in accordaHce with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Such preparation requires

management of the State of New Jersey to make a number of estimates and assumptions relating to the reported

amounts. Due to the inherent nature of these estimates, actual results could differ from those estimates.
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Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability

The total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022 was detennmed by an actuarial valuation as of June 30,

2021, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2022. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending
on the pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions,

applied to all periods in the measurement:

TPAF/ABP PERS PFRS
Salary Increases:

2.75 - 4.25% 2.75 - 6.55% 3.25 - 16.25%

based on years based on years based on years

of service of service of service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers" (TPAF/ABP), "General" (PERS),

and "Safety" (PFRS) ciassiftcation headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the central year using tfie Scale MP-2021. Postretirement mortality rates were based

on the PUB-2010 Healthy "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational

mortality improvement projections from the central year using the Scale MP-2021. Disability mortality was based
on the PUB-2010 Healthy "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality table with fully generational
mortality improvement projections from the central year using die Scale MP-2021 for current disables retirees.

Future disabled retirees were based on Pub-2010 "Safety" (PFRS), "General" (PERS), and "Teachers"

(TPAF/ABP) classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully generational mortality
improvement projections from the ceatra! year using Scale MP-2021 .

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of TPAF, PERS and

PPRS experience studies prepared for July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2021.

OPEB Obligation and OPEB Expense " The State's proportionate share of the total Other Post Employment

Benefits Obligations, attributable to the School District as of Juue 30, 2022 was $166,894,424. The School
District's proportionate share was $0.

The OPEB Obligation was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total OPEB Obligation used to calculate the
OPEB Obligation was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July I, 2021, which was rolled forward to June

30, 2022. The State's proportionate share of the OPEB Obligation associated with the District was based on
projection of the State's long-term contributions to the OPEB plan associated with the District relative to the

projected contributions by the State associated with all participating school districts, actuarially determined. At

June 30, 2022, the State proportionate share of the OPEB Obligation attributable to the School District was

0.3295282913%, which was an increase of 0.0002535841% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2021.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the State of New Jersey recognized an OPEB expense in the amount of
$5,339,014 for tlie State's proportionate share of the OPEB expense attributable to the School District. This OPEB
expense was based on the OPEB plans June 30, 2022 measurement date.
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Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 6.25% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after

eight years. For post-65 medical benefits PPO, the trend is initially -1.99% in fiscal year 2023, increasing to 13.44% in

fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For HMO the trend is initally -3.54% in fiscal year 2023,

increasing to 15.19% in fiscal year 2026 and decreases to 4.50% in fiscal year 2033. For prescription dmg benefits, the

initial trend rate is 8.00% and decreases to a 4.50% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.00%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.54%, respectively. This represents the municipal bond

return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which includes

tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. As the long-term rate of

return is less than the municipal bond rate, it is not considered m the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount

rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in discount rate:

The following presents the total nonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022, respectively, calculated using the

discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using

a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1 -percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2022

At 1 % At Discount At 1 %
Decrease (2.54%) Rate (3.54%) Increase (4.54%)

State of New Jersey's

Proportionate Share of Total OPEB

Obligations Associated with

the School District $ 196,166,840 $ 166,894,424 $ 143,434,046

State of New Jersey's

Total Nonemployer OPEB

Liability $ 59,529,589,697 $ 50,646,462,966 $ 43,527,080,995

Sensitivity of Total Nonemployer OPEB Liability to changes in the healthcare trend rate:

The following presents the total aonemployer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2022, calculated using the healthcare trend

rate as disclosed above as well as what the total nonemployer OPEB liability would be if it was calculated using a

healthcare trend rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1 -percentage point higher than the current rate:
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June 30,2022

I % Decrease

Healthcare Cost

Trend Rate *

State of New Jersey's

Proportionate Share of Total OPEB

Obligations Associated with

the School District

State of New Jersey's

Total Nonemployer OPEB

137,948,442 $

1% Increase

166,894,424 $ 204,916,728

$ 41,862,397,291 $ 50,646,462,966 $ 62,184,866,635

* See Healthcare Cost Trend Assumptions for details of rates.

Additional Information

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Deferred Outflows of

Resources

Deferred Inflows of

Resources

Differences between Expected

& Actual Experience

Change in Assumptions

Contributions Made in Fiscal Year

Year Ending 2023 After June 30,

2022 Measurement Date **

9,042,402,619

8,765,620,577

TBD

15,462,950,679
17,237,289,230

N/A

$ 17,808,023,196 $ 32,700,239,909

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be

recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Fiscal Year

Ending June 30,

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Thereafter

$ (2,517,151,602)
(2,517,151,602)
(2,517,151,602)
(2,517,151,602)
(1,243,951,140)
(3,921,361,006)

$ (15,233,918,554)

** Employer Contributions made after June 30, 2022 are reported as a deferred outflow of resources, but are not

amortized in expense.
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Plaa Membership

At June 30, 2020, the Program membership consisted of the followmg:

Active Plan Members 213,148

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries

Currently Receiving Benefits 151,669

364,817

Changes in the Total OPEB Liability

The change in the State's Total OPEB liability for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 (measurement date June 30, 2022) is

as follows:

Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost $ 2,770,618,025

Interest Cost 1,342,187,139

Difference Between Expected & Actual Experience 1,399,200,736

Changes of Assumptions (13,586,368,097)

Contributions: Member 42,650,252

Gross Benefit Payments (1 ,329,476,059)

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (9,361,188,004)

Total OPEB Liability (Begimiing) 60,007,650,970

Total OPEB Liability (Ending) $ 50,646,462,966

Total Covered Employee Payroll $ 14,753,355,408

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Payroll 343%

Note 10. On-Behalf Payments for Fringe Benefits and Salaries

As previously mentioned, the School District receives on-behalf payments from the State of New Jersey for normal costs and

post-retirement medical costs related to the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) pension plan. The School District
is not legally responsible for these contributions. The on-behalf payments are recorded as revenues and expenditures in the

govemment-wide and general fund financial statements. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, the on-behalf payments for

normal costs, post-retirement medical costs, and long-term disability were $11,931,637, $3,134,412 and $4,032,

respectively.
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Note 11. Risk Management

Property and Liability Insurance - The School District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property,

general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions;

injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and natural disasters. The Board has obtained

commercial insurance coverage to guard agaiust these events to minimize the exposure to the School District

should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section of this

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.

Self Health Insurance - The School District has established a health and prescription plan for its employees.

The plan was establislied during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Transactions related to the plan are

accounted for in the General Fund. The School District funds the entire cost of the plan. Claims are paid

directly by the plan.

Estimates of claims payable and of claims incurred, but not reported (IBNR) at June 30, 2023, are reported as

claims and judgments payable and accrued liability for insurance claims, respectively. These estimates were

determined based on claim information supplied by die claims administrator and actuary. The unpaid claims

liability of $997,400 reported at June 30, 2023 is based on the requirements of the Governmental Accounting

Standards Board Statemeot No. 10, which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to

the issuance of the financial statements mdicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date

of the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities for the health insurance plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023

is as follows:

GQyemrnentaLActivitjes Fiscal

Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Unpaid Claims, Beginning of Year $ 828,600
Incurred Claims (including IBNR's) 168,800

Unpaid Claims, End of Fiscal Year $ 997,400

General Fimd

Other Current Liabilities $ 997,400

997,400

Joint Insurance Pool - The School District is g. member of the School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

(SEL) and Diploma Joint Insurance Fund. The Funds are risk sharing public entity pools, established for the

purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims and various other types of coverage.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance funds is governed by a contract and by-laws that have

been adopted by resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make ai!

annual and supplementary contributions to the funds, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the

management of the funds, its claims administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to

follow risk management procedures as outlined by the funds. Members have a contractual obligation to fond any

deficit of the funds attibutable to a membership year during whidi they were a member.

The Funds provides their members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of

claims and to establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the

members. Complete financial statements of the respective insurance jEunds are on file with the School's Busmess

Administrator.

There has been no significant reductiou in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any

settlements in excess ofmsurance coverage's in any of the prior three years.
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New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance - The School District has elected to fund its New Jersey

Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit Reimbursement Method". Under this plan, the

School District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The School District is billed quarterly for amounts

due to the State. The following is a summary of School District contributions, employee contributions,

reimbursements to the State for benefits paid and the ending unemployment claims fund balance and/or

unemployment trust liability of the School District for the current year and previous two years.

Fiscal Year

2022
2022
2021

Interest

$ 1,970
1,909

Contributions

$ 87,241
55,684

107,013

Amount

Reimbursed

$ 108,102
1,548

1,615

Ending

Restricted
Unemployment
Fund Balance

$ 285,768
283,798
281,889

; Balance

Unemployment

Tmst Liability

$ 136,435
157,296

103,160

Note 12. Contingencies

State and Federal Grantor Agencies - The School District participates in numerous state and federal grant

programs, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent

that the School District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any

money received may be required and the collectabillty of any related receivable at June 30, 2023 may be

impaired, hi the opinion of the School District, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to
compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no provisions have been

recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies.

Litigation - The School District is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is

not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the School Districts' attorney that resolution of these matters will

act have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the School District.

Economic Dependency - The School District receives a substantial amount of its support from federal and state

governments. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, could have an effect on the

School District's programs and activities.
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Note 13. Deferred Compensation

The School District offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in

accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) and 457. The plans, which are administered by the

entities listed below, permits participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred

under the plans are not available to employees until termmation, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

The plan administrators are as follows:

AXA Equitable Lincoki Financial Life Met Life

Security Benefit Valic

Note 14. Compensated Absences

The School District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, siclc leave) as directed by

Governmental Accomiting Standards Board Statement No. 16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated

Absences". A liability for compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not contingent on

a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights

to the benefits.

School District employees are granted varying amount of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the Scliool

District's personnel policies. Upon termmation, employees are paid for accrued vacation. The School District

policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full amount to subsequent

years. Upon retirement employees shall be paid by the School District for the unused sick leave in accordance

with School Districts' agreements with the various employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types is recorded in the Statement of Net

Position. At June 30, 2023, the liability for compensated absences reported was $ 1,739,87 1.

Note 15. Tax Abatements

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 77, a tax abatement is an

agreement between a government and an individual or entity in which the government promises to forgo tax

revenues and the individual or entity promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic

development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts are not authorized by New

Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school

district is situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these

financial statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will

not directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and NJ.S.A. 54:4-76 require

that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school district.
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For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their minimum

tax levy using the required local share provisions at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-5(b), the loss of revenue resulting from the

municipality or county having entered mto a tax abatement agreement is indetermmate due to the complex nature

of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey Department of Education based upon

district property value and wealth.

Note 16. Calculation of Excess Surplus

The designation for Restricted Fund Balance - Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to

N.J.S.A.18A:7F-7. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal

year-eud of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in fheir
subsequent years' budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2023 was $-0-.

Note 17. Fund Balances

General Fund - Of the $ 11 ,778,843 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2023, $5,540, 152 has been restricted
for the Capital Reserve Account; $1,709,613 has been restricted for the Maintenance Reserve Account; $381,933
has been restricted for the Emergency Reserve Account; $285,768 has been restricted for Unemployment

Claims; $292,923 has been assigned to other purposes; $1,604,734 has been assigned for subsequent year's

expenditures and $1,963,720 has been unassigned.

Special Revenue Fund - Of the $355,037 Special Revenue Fund fund balance at June 30, 2023, $316,576 is
restricted for Student Activitues and $38,461 is restricted for Scholarships.

Note 18. Deficit Fund Balance

The District has an accumulated deficit of $453,774 in the Capital Projects Fund as of June 30, 2023. This
deficit is the result of the School District utilizing temporary financing to fund expenditures for certain capital
projects. As the District permanently finances these appropriations the District will realize as revenues the

proceeds of the financing. This deficit does not indicate that the District is facing financial difficulties and is a

permitted practice under generally accepted accounting principles.

Note 19. Deficit in Net Position

Unrestricted Net Position - The School District governmental activities had a deficit in unrestricted net

position m the amount of $17,933,939 at June 30, 2023. The primary causes of this deficit is the School District
not recognizing the receivable for the last two state aid payments and the recording of the net pension liability
for the Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS) as of June 30, 2023. This deficit in unrestricted net
position for governmental activities does not indicate that the School District is facing financial difficulties.

Note 20. Commitments

The District has contractual con'imitments as June 30, 2023 to various vendors, which are recorded in the

General Fund as Fund Balance Assigned to Other Purposes in the amount of $292,923.

Note 21. Subsequent Events

On July 18, 2023, the School District issued School Bonds m the amount of $66,599,208 to fund various capital
improvements throughout the district.
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WALL TOWjNSHUP BOAJEtD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPAmSON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT C-l

JUNE 30,2023

'0
-~]

Revenues:
Local Sources:

Local Tas Levy

Tuition From Individuals

Tuition From LEAs Within State
Lnlcrcst on Capital Rcscn'c Fund
Interest on Maintenfmce Reserve

Interest on Unemployment Reserve

Rents aad R-oyalties

Miscellaneous

Total Local Sources

State Sources:

Catceorical Transportation Aid
ExBaordinary Aid

Calegorical Special Education Aid
Categorical Security Aid

Other Unrestricted State Aid

Nonbudgeled;

TPAF - Pust Retirement Medical (Nuncash Assistance)

TPAF - Pension Contributions (Noncash Assistance)

TPAF - Ltmg-Term Disabiiity Insurance (NoncMh Assistance)

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

Total Slate Sources

Federai Souroes:
Medicaid Reimbursement

ARRA/SEMI Revenue

Total Federal Sources

Total Revenues

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

JO-1210
10-1310

] 0-1320

JO-1511
10-1512

tO-1513
lo-mo

iO-1950

10-4200
10-4210

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

BUDGET
TRANSFERS

FTNAL
BtFDGET ACTUAL

VAJtUANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

70,521,283
315,000
750,000

4.000
500
500

120.UOO

311,057

72.022.340

10-3121
] 0-3131
10.3132
10-3177

10-3190

1.385,702
400,000

3,271.093

341,937
15,061

5,413,793

70.521,283 S
315,000
750,000

4,000
500
500

120,000
311,057

70,521,283 S
255,542
858,969

95.B95

144,496

(59,458)
108,969

(4,000)
(500)
(500)

(24,105)
(166.561)

72,022.340

5,413,793

71,R76,1S5

23,787,350

(346,155)

1.385,702

400,000
3,271,093

341,937

15,061

1,385,702
1,197,230
3,271.093

341.937

58,S80

3,334,412
11,931,637

4,032
2,462,727

797.230

43,519

3,134,412
! 1,931,63 7

4,032
2.462,727

18,373,557

54,518

54,518

77.490,651

54,518

54,518

77.490,651

40,344
4.513

44,857

95,708,392

(14,174)
4.513

(?.^1)

18,217,741



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 3D, 21)23

EXHIBIT C-l

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

JUNE 30,2023
BL'DGJKT

TRANSFERS
FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

^0
00

Current Expense:

Regular Progtams - Instruciion:

Kindergarten - Salaries of Teachers

Grades 1-5 - Saiaries of Teachers

Grades 6-8 - Salaries of Teachers

Grades 9-12 - Salaries ofTeachCT!;

Regular ProgiamB - Home Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers

Puiehased Professional - Educational Services

Regular Programs - Undistribuled tostruction:

Other Salaries for tnstruction

Purchased PtufessioDal - Educational Services

Purchased Technical Services

Other Purchased Services

General Supplies

Textbooks

Other Objects

Total Regular Pj-DgTama - Instruction

Special Education - Instruction:

Learaing and/or Language Disabilities:

Salimcs ofTeachCTS

Othei Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies

Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities

Beliavioml Disabilities;

Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries For Instruction

Oenerai Supplies

Total Behavioral Disabilities

Multiple Disabilities:
Salaries of Teachers

Other Saiaries forJnsfruction

General Supplies

Olher Puroliascd Services

Total Multiple Disabilities

Resource Room/Resouice Center;
Salaries of Teachers

Olfaer Salaries
Genera! Supplies

Total Resource Room/Resourcc Center

11-110-100-101

11-120-100.101
U-130-100-301

11-140-100-101

11.150-100-101

11.150-100-320

11-190-100-106

11-190-100-320

U-190-100-340

11-190-100-500

ti-190-100.610

1 i-190-100-640

E1-190-100-SOO

962,050
6.B50.560

4,645,782

7,504,437

145,000
60,000

46,042
375,085

250,409
116,900

2,2E 1,278

117,BOO
1,000

23.356,343

(52,274)
.] 52.593

167,187
(299,617)

(44,380)
(12,000)

74.26E)
(73,655)

(780,93 i)
3 64.91 ?

5

(503,884)

909.776
7.003,153
4,812,969

7,204,820

100,620
4S.OOO

120,31!
301,430
250,409
116,900

1,500,347
482,719

1.005

22.S52.459

909.776
7,002.906
4,812,969

7,204,820

100,620
35,B)9

120,311
30),092
213.240

92,935
1,288,953

482.057
1.005

22,566,503

247

12,181

338
37,169
23,965

211.394
662

285.956

11-20-1-100-101

11-204-100-106

11-204-30CI-610

H-209-100-10]

11-209-100-106

11-209-100.610

Ii-212-100-101

11-212-]00-106

11-212-100-610

n-2] 2-100-500

11-213.100-lOi

1]-213-]00-106

11-213-100-610

612.190

140,632
35,199

788,021

149,250
81.927
10.000

241.177

422,843

155,989
26,000

700

605,532

6,110,918
654,014

36,000

6.800,932

(1S4,72I)
(41,276)
(22.916)

(218,913)

7,550
9,523

(9,580)

7,493

8B,OS2

(71,393)
(1,473)

15,217

(386,743)
77,925
(6,964)

(315.7S31

457.469
99,356
12.2B3

569,108

156,800
91.450

420

248,670

510,925
84,597
24,527

700

620,749

5,724,175

731,939
29,036

G,4S5,150

453.493

99,355
6.482

559,330

156,800
91,450

420

248,670

508,994
84,596
21,013

272

614,875

5,723,624

731,737
28,891

6,484,252

3,976

I
5,801

9,77S

1,931
I

3.514
428

5,874

551
302
145

89S



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT C-l

y?
y5

Prescliool Disabilities - Part-Time;

Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

General Supplies

Total Preschool Disabilities - Fari-Time

Total Special Educalion • instruction

Basic Skill s/Remedial-Instruction

Salaries of Teachers

Total Basic Skill s/RcmediaWnstruction

Bilingual Educarion-Iastruction;

Salaries ofTeaetier^

General Supplies

Total Bilingual Education-Instrudion

School-SponsoTed CocwricuIaT/EKfra

Cumcular Activities - lastmction:

Salaries

Total Scliool-Sponsored Cucumcular/Extra

Curricular Activities - Instruction

School-Sponsored Athletics - Instruction;

Salaries
Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total SchooI-SponsoTed Athletics - Instruction

Undisfributed Expenditures - Instruction (Tuition);

Tuition to Other LEAs Within State - Regular

Tuition to Other LEAs Within State - Special
Tnilion to County Vocational Scliool - Regular

Tuition to County Vocational School - Special

Tuition to Private School Disabled Within State
Tui lion - S fate Facililies

Total Ucdistributed Expenditures - Instruction (Tuition)

Undistributed Expenditures Attendance and Social Work:

Salaries

Salary of Family Liaisons

Total Uadistributttd Expeuditures Attendance and Social Work

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

11-215-100-101

11-21S-100-W6

11-215-100-610

11-230- EOO-I01

11-240-100-101

] 1-240-100.610

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

273,400

165,604
5.300

444,504

8,880,166

766,175

766,175

197,325
2,000

199.325

JUNE 38,
BUDGET

TRANSFERS

(787)
(9,395)

(10,182)

f522.167)

46,628

46,628

(13,706)
(J,7SS)

(15.4^)

2023
FINAL

BUDGET

272,613
156,209

5,500

434,322

8.357.999

S12.803

812,803

183,619
212

1S3.S31

ACTUAL

272.613

155,424
4,967

433.004

8,340.131

812.802

812,802

183,618
212

183,830

VARIANCE
CTPiALTO
ACTUAL

785
533

1,318

17.868

1

1

1

I

11-40MOO-100

11-402"100-EOO
11-402-100-500

11-402-100-600

11-000-100-561

11-000-100-562

II-000-100-563

H-000-100-564

11-000-100-566
11-000-100-56B

I1.000-2I1.100

11-000-211-173

333,842

333.B42

674,554
201,593
103,629

979,776

43,547
465.163
477,433
119,946

t,S72,40S
40.270

3,01B,767

40,020
636,225

676.245

(5,332)

(5,332)

(1,?21)
(19,879)

1,S72

(19.92B)

33.640
(14,140)

(1,775)
1,775

(205,267)

(185,767)

1,910

(t,541)

369

328,5i0

328.510

672,633
181,714

105,501

959.R48

77,187
451,023
475,658
121,72]

1,667,141
40.270

2.833,000

41.930

634.6S4

676,614

327,76S

327,768

672,633
181,599

100,891

955,123

72,209

367,719
472,803
121.719

1.641.7S3
40.270

2,716,513

41,930

634.6B4

676,614

742

742

us
4.610

4,725

4.978

B3.304
2,855

2
25,348

H 6,487



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPAMSON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT C.1

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

JUNE 30,2023
BUDGET

TRANSFERS
FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

VAJUANCE
FWAL TO
ACTUAL

00

Undistributsd Expenditures - Health Serrices:

Salaries

Purchased Professional & Technical Semces

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Undistfibuted Expenditures - Health Services

Undistributed Expenditures -

Speech, OT, PT and Related Services:

Salaries
Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Uiidistributed Expenditures -

Speech, OT, FT and Related Services

Other Support Semces - Students - Extra Services:

Salaries
Purchased Professioinal Educational Serrices

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Otlier Support Senises - Students - Extra Services

Undistributcd Expcndimres - Guidance;

Salaries ofOther Professional Staff

Salaries of Secretaries & Clerical Assistants

Supplies and Materials

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Guidance

Uiidistributed Expenditures - Child Study Teams:

Salaries of Other Professiona! Staff

Salaries of Secretaries & Clerical Assistants

Other Puichased Professional & Technical Semces

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Undistribtited Expenditures - Child Study Teams

Undistributed Expenditures - Iroptovement

oflnstruction Semces:

Salaries ofSupcrvisois onaslructioc

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Undisbibuted Expenditures - Improvement

offastructioa Semccs

11-000-213-100

H.000-2)3-300

11-000.213-500

tl-000-213-600

667,025
15,000

5,000
25.1S3

11-000-221-102

11-000.221-500
U-000-221-600

11-000-221-800

7] 2,20

92CU62

3.000

3,000

156.517

12.000

S23,542
1S.OOO
5,000

37,1S3

823.204
1,775

928
33.693

338
13,225

4,072
3,490

168.517 880,735 SS9.600 21.125

U-000-216-100

11-000-216-320

U "000.216.600

11-000-217.100

I l-UOO-217-320

11.000-217^00
11-000-217-800

H-000-2iS-i04

11-000-318-J05
11.000-21E-600

11-000-219-104

11-000-219-105

11-000-219-390

11-000-219-500

H-000.219-600

861,425
217,410

3,775

1,082,610

1,131,929

152,925
18,800
37,000

1,340,654

726,855
222,?00

28,SOO

97S>555

1,591.730
149,260
141.901

7,075
33,433

1,923,399

124.985
59,286

184,271

(148,316)

04,403')

fl62J!9)

(3,585)
(44,780)

2.298

(46,067)

(128,245)
(36,170)

I

(164,414)

986,410
276,696

3,775

1,266,8S1

983,613
152.925

18.800
22,597

!.] 77.935

723,270
178,120
31,098

932,48B

1.463,485

113,090
141,902

7,075
33.433

1,758,985

984.889

257,938
2.474

1,245,301

981,657
119,091

8,306
17,585

1,126,639

723.270
178,119
24.786

926,175

],462,515
113,090
89,287
3,344

31.B50

1,700,086

1.521
18,758

1,301

21.5SO

1,956
33,834

10,494
5,012

51,296

]
6,312

6,313

970

52,615
3,731
1,583

58,899

(1&2,?29)
7,515

S45

727,433
7,515

3,000
3,845

727,431
4,020
1,467

3.830

2
3,495
1,533

15

926.362 084.569) 74JJ93 736,74S 5,045



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD UP EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

JUNE 30, 2023
BUDGET

TRANSFERS
FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

EXHIBIT C-l

VARIANCE
FWAL TO
ACTUAL

Un distributed Expenditures -

Educational Media Services/Library:
Salaries

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials

Total Undistributed Expenditures -

Educational Media Scrvices/Libraiy

Us distributed Expenditures -

Instructional SlafTTrainmE Services;

Other Salaries

Other Pwchased Services

Purchased Professional - Educationai Services

Total Undistributed ExpeBditures -

Instructional Staff Training SCTVJCCS

Undistributed E)(penditnres -

Support Services - General Adminisbalion:

Salaries
Legal Services

Audit Fees

Arehitectural/Engineering Services

Other Purchased Professional Senwes

Cummunications/Tdephonc

Travel

BOE Other Purchased ProfessiDnal Services
Other Puichascd Services

General Supplies

Judgements Against School District

MisecUancnus Expenditures
BOE Membership Dues and Fees

Totai Undistributed Expenditures -

Support Services - General Administration

Uadistributed Expenditures -

Support Services - School Administration;

Salaries ofPrmcipalii/Asrislant Principah
Salaries of Other Profcssiona! Staff

Salaries of Secretaries & Clerical Assistants

Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Undistributed Espenditurcs -

Support Services - School Administration

11-000-222.100

11.000.222.500

11-000-222.600

316,323
8,500

83.089

43,835

..(57fil_

360,158
8,500

82,513

360,156
7,678

71,973

2
822

10.540

407,912

60,000

43.259 451,171

(41,997) 18.003

439.B07

11-000-223-tlO

11-000-223-500

11-000-223-600

5,600
51,900
2.500

(3,752)
(38,245)

1.E48
13,655
2.500

1,848
13,655

i 5.503

] 1.364

2,500

2,500

11-000-230-100
11-000-230-331

11-000-230-332

11-000-230-334

31-000-230-339

i 1-000-230-530

i 1.000-230-580

11-000-230-585
11-000.230.590

11-000-230-610

11-000-230.820

11-000-230-890

11-000-230-895

610,092
256,164

69,000
20,000
84,480

163,800

4,500

1R 1,000
14.110
50,000
5,000

27.000

1,485,146

22,396
I],898

(20,000)
17,103

(82,110)
6,380

31,394
12.637

(22,894)
1,520

1,763

09,7)3)

632.4BB
268,062

69,000

101,583
81,690

6,580
4,500

212,394
26,747

27,106
6.520

28,763

1,465,433

632,200
193,004
57.333

58,747

23.890
5,397
1,876

209,112
10,147

16,000
fi;Z58

28,763

1,242,727

2B8
75,058

11,667

42,836

57,800
i,183
2,624

3,282
16,600

11,106
262

222,706

11.000-240-103

U-OOOL.240-104

11-000-240-105

11-000-240-500

11-000-240^600

11-000-240^00

1,676,691

646,033
631,429
24,300

SO,3B9

1,650

54,221

65.775
41,364

3,035

(15,239)

1,730,912

711.808

672,793
27,335
65.150

1.650

1,730,911
711,806

671,780
!E,165
58,424

560

1
2

1.013
9,170
6,726
1,090

3,060,492 14PJ56 3,209,648 3,191,646 18,002



WALL TOWNSMtP BOAJRD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT C-l

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

JUNE 30,2023
BUDGET

TRANSFERS
FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

QhJ

Undistributed Expenditures - Central Services;

Salaries

Pweliased ProfessiOTia! Services

Pwctiased Technical Services

MisceUancotis Fuichased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Undistributed Expenditures - Centia] Swvices

Uadistribuled Expendilures -

Administrative laformation Technology;

Salaries
Puichascd Technical Setviucs

Other Purchased Services

Suppiies and Materials

Total Uadistributed Expenditures -

Administrative Information Technology

Ucdistributed Expendihffes -
Required Maintenance for School Facilities:

deaaing. Repair &. Maiatecaacc Services

General Supplies

Total Undistnbuted Expenditures -

Required Maintenance for School Facilities

Undistribtited Expenditures - Custodial Services:

Salaries
Salaries ofNon-Ihstructiunal Aids

Purchased Professional & Technical Services

Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance Services
Rental of Land & Buildings, Other Than Lease

Other Purchased Property Services

Insurance

Travel
Miscellaneous Purchased Services

General Supplies

Energy (Natural Gas)
Energy (Electricity)
Other Objects

Total Undistributfid Expenditures - Custodial Services

11-000.251.100

11.000.251.330

11.000.251-340

U-000-251-592

11-000.251-600

11.000.251-890

655,825
70,147

71,700
32,055
24,000

1,500

B55,227

(56,440)
42,720
15,075
(5.810)

f4.455)

S99,385
112,867
86,775
26,245

24,000
1,500

850.772

599,385
110,066
74,424

13,276
18,985

1,246

B 17,382

2,S01

12,351
12.969
5,015

254

33.390

n-OOO-252-tOO

11.000-252.340

11.000-252-500

11-000-252-600

556,850
247,192

4,375

16,851

(10,244)

3,600

546,606
247,192

7,975
16,85]

545,902
227.110

7.001
16.568

704
20,082

974
283

825,268 (6,644) 818,624 796.581 22.043

U-000-26M20

11-000-261-610

11-000-262-100

11-000-262-107

11-000-362-300

U-000-262^20

11.000-262-441

11.000-262-490

11-000-262-520

11-000-262-580

t1.000-262.590

11.000-262-610

i1.000-262-621

11-000-262-622

11-000-362-SOO

569,649

245,963

815,612

3,137,872

407,971
97,466

I76,?48
55,000

1S6.0UO

601.370

4,300

230,629
3S6.000
675,000

3,000

5.961,456

(233,301)
(5,736)

(239.037)

(191,063)
(15,563)

479
(51,4S9)
19,175
] 4,000
79,523

1,000

(1,000)
15,000

204,616
(12.780)

61,929

336.34S
240,227

576,575

2.946,809

392,409
97,945

125,489
74,175

200,000
680,793

1,000
3,300

245,629
590,616
662,220

3,000

6,023,385

231,322
213,340

444,662

2.945.87S

391,441
45.710

1:5,789
68,653

185.7B9
680,793

196,321
590.608
656.081

500

5.877,563

105,026
26.8B7

131,913

931
968

52,235
9,700
5,522

14.211

1,000
3,300

49,308
s

6.139

2.500

145,822



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETAKY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT C-l

JUNE 3D, 2023
ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

BUDGET
TRANSFERS

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL

VARIANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

Qw

Undistributed Expenditures -

Care and Upkeep of Grounds:

Cleaning. Repair & Maintenance Services

General Supplies

Total Undistributed Expcadilures -

Care and Upkeep of Grounds

Security:

Salaries

Purchased Professiocai & Technical Services

Cleaning, Repair & Maintenance

General Supplies

Total Securily

Undistributed Expenditures -

Sludenl Transportalion Services:
Salaries ofNon-Lnstructional Aides

Saiaries of Pupil Transportation (Between Home & School)-Regular

Salaries of Pupil Transportation fBetweea Home & School) - Special Education

Salaries of Pupii Tnuisportatioc (Other Thau Between Home & School) - Regular

Salaries of Pupii Transportation (Between Home & School)-Nanpublic

Other PiiTcbascd Professional &. Tccbmcaj Services

Cleaning. Repair & Maintenance Services

Lease Purchase Payments - School Buses
Contract Services (Aide m Lieu) - Non Public Schools

Conhact Services (Other Than Between Home & School) - Vendors

Contract Services (Speciai Education) - Vendors

Contract Services (Special Education) - Joint Agrccroeats

Contract Sendces (Regular) ESC's
Contract Services (Special Education) - ESC's

Miscellaneous PuiL-hased Services - Transportation

General Supplies

Transportation Supplies

Miscellaneous Expenditures

Total Undistributed Expenditures -

Stud ecl Transportation Services

Ucalfocated Benefits:

Group Insurance
Social Security Contributions
Other Retirement Contributions - PERS

Other Retirement Contributions • Rcguiar

Workmen's Compensation

Health Benefits
Tuition Reimbursement

Other Employee Benefits

Unused Sick Payment to Staff

Total Unallocated Benefits

11-000-263-420

11-000-263-610

'i 1-000-266-100

11-000-266-300

11-000.266-420

U-000-266-6!0

204,350
56,825

261,175

711.537

45,000
29,076

8,500

794,113

5,000

(IS.955)

(13.955)

(13,233)
9,100

(22,000)

(26,133)

209,350
37.S70

247,220

69B,304
S4,100
7.076
8,500

767.980

199,183
35.281

234.464

697,936
48,150

6,580

5,709

758,375

10,167

2,589

12,756

368
5,950

496
2,79)

9,605

11-000-270-107

11-000-270-160

11-000-270-161

11-000-270-362

D.000.270-163
li-000-270-390

11.000-270420
U -000-270.443
U-000-27U-503

n.000-270-512

11-000-270-514
13-QO&-270-515

11.000-270.517

U-OOG-270-518

11-000.270-593

11-000-270-610

11-000-270-615

11.000-270-800

11-000-291-210

11-000.291-220

11-000-291-241

11-000.291.249

11-000-291-260

11-000-291-270

11-000-291-280

11.000-291.290

11.000-291-299

229.160
1,576,490

451,325

65,000
53,154
50,500

80,173
425,000

98,351
10,000

63,868
103,567

1,05B,027
1,043.025

75,500
14,040

363,926
500

5,761,606

15,000

i,i 00,000
1,450,000

50.000
610,000

U,R72,573
12.000
58.526

50,000

15,218,099

(67,747)
(58.367)

(168,i!3S)
16,900

(27,7971
4.000

(62,819)
i 26.000
20,000

12,696
(50.165)
63,269

(12,696)
17,867

36.998

(150.699)

(1.255)
16,405

(1,000)
(120,752)

i,i91,B30
(326)

i42>639
62,960

1,290,501

161,413
I.51B.123

282.487
81,900
25,357
54.500
80,173

362,181
224,35]
30,000
76,564
53,402

1,121,296

1.030,329

93,367
14,040

400,924
500

5.610.907

15,000

1,098,745

1,466,405

49,000

489,248
13,064,403

El,674
201,165
H2,9fi0

16,508,600

158,536
1,512,948

282,487
81,758
25,287

46,293
61,647

362,181
176.276

19,103
62.20S
53.402

1,121,295

966,224
93,193

11,929
376,928

160

5.411,855

13,997
1,09 J,082

1,466,405

18.630

489,248
13.022,11 B

11.674
301,165
I! 2.960

16,427,279

2,877

5,175

142
70

8,207
18,526

48,075
l0,8?7
14,356

1
64,105

174
2,i)l

23,996
340

199,052

1.003

7,663

30,370

42.285

81,321



WALL TOWNSHIP BUAJtB OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXmBIT C-l

g

Nonbudgeted:

TPAF - Post Retirement Medical (Noncash Assistance)

TPAF • Pension Contributions (Nnncash Assistance)

TPAF - Loag-Term Disability Insurance (Noncash Assistance)

Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions

Total Undistributed Expendihn&s

Total Expenditures - Curresil Expense

Equipment:

Grades 9-12

ScbooI-Sponsored & Other fastructional Programs

Undistiibuted Expenditures:

Uadist. Expend. - Required Maint for School Fac.

Undist, Expend.s= Custodial Services

Non-Instructicmal Services

Total Equipment

Fauilities Acquisition & ConsiTuction Ser^'ices:

Aichitectural/EngincCTuig Services

Construction Services

BuUdings
Assessment foi Debt Service on SDA Funding

Total Facilities Acquisition & Construction Services

Total Capital Outlay

Transfer of Funds to Charter Schools

Tota! Expenditures

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

12-140-100-730

12-400-100-730

12-000.261-730

12-000-362-730

12-000-300-730

! 2-000-400.334

12-000^400^50

12-000-400-720

12-OOfr400-S96

10.000-100-560

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

46,164,906

80,680,533

5,017
2.532

30,000

113,000

4.894

155,443

120,540
2,743,762

192,395
7.7RO

3,064,477

3.219.920

165,816

84,066,269

JUNE 311,
BUDGET

TRANSFERS

651,833

(368.344)

8,673

3,904

(30.UOO)
(H3,OOOJ

143,000

! 2.577

12,577

355,767

2B23
FTOAL

BUDGET

46,816,739

80,312.189

13.690

6,436

147,894

168,020

120.540
2,743,762

192,395
7.7RO

3,064,477

3.232.497

521,583

84.066,269

ACTUAL

3,134,412

11,931,637

4.032
2,462,727

63J7S.328

96,364.485

i3,689
6,436

97,835

117,960

26,325

1,128.319
192.395

7,780

1,354,819

1.472,779

521.5B3

98,358,847

VARIANCE
CTNALTO
ACTUAL

(3.134,412)
(11,931,637)

(4,032)
(2,462,727}

(16,361,58?^

(i 6,052.2%)

1

50,059

50,060

94,215
1,615,443

1,709,658

1,759,718

(14.292.57B)

Excess/(Deficiency) ofB.evenues Over/

(Under) Expcadituics (6,575,61K) (6.575,618) (2,650,455) 3,925,163



WM-L TOWMSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2(123

EXHIBIT C-l

ACCOUNT
NUMBERS

Excess/(Deficieiicy) ofRevenues Over/

(Under) Expenditures After Other
Financing SouK:es/(Uses)

Fund Balances, Jufy 1

Fund Balances. June 30

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

JUNE 3U, 2023
BUDGET

TRANSFERS
FINAL

BUDGET ACTUAL

(6.575.61S)
14,922.848

(6,575,618)
14,922,848

8.347.230 S 8.347.230 $

(2,650,455)
14,922,848

VARIANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

12,272,393 $

3,925,163

3,925.163

RECAPITULATION OF FUND BALANCE

0̂

Restricted Fund Baianee;

Capital Reserve

Maintenance Reserve

Emergency Reserve

Reserve for Unemployment Claims

Assigned Fund Balance:

Yem-End Encumbrances

Designalcd for Subsequent Year's Expcndiiurcs

Unassigned Fund Balance

Subtotal

Reconciliation to Govcnuttimia] Funds Statements (OAAP):

Last State Aid Payments not recognized on GAAP basis

5,540,152

1.70S,613
3SI.933

285,768

292,923

1,604,734
2,457,270

12,272,393

(493,550)

Fund Balance per Goveouncatal Funds (GAAP) 11,778,843



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPABISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT C"2

JUNE 30,2023

VARIANCE
FNAL TO
ACTUAL

Revenues:

Local Sources
State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professional - Educationai Services

Tuition

General Supplies

Other Objects

Total Inshilction

Support Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff

Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)

Supplies and Materials

Scholarships Awarded

Student Activities

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Total Outflows

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Uader)
Expenditures & Other Financing Sourees/(Uses)

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Restricted:

Scholarships
Student Activities

Total Fund Baiance

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

$
97,000

1.133,000

1.230.0GO

BUDGET
TRANSFERS

$ 2,923,763 ;
232,121

609,075

3,764,959

FBsTAL
BUDGET

t 2,923,763 3
329,121

1,742,075

4,994,959

ACTUAL

> 749,689 $
308,244

1,993,262

3,051,195

(OVER)/
UNDER

2,174,074
20,877

(251,187)

1,943,764

210,000

872,000

1,082,000

31,000

88,000

29,000

148,000

1,230,000

1,230,000

$ - $

317,741

$ 317,741 $

1,067,029

13,060
954,038

(424,618)
2,473

1,611,982

365,846

86,844

870,810
272,755 '

41,561
5,091

478,773

2,321,680

3,733,662

3,733,662

31,297 $

31,297 $

1,277,029
13,060

954,038
447,382

2,473

2,693,982

365,846
1IZ844
$58,810
272,755

70,561
5,091

478,773

2,269,680

4,963,662

4,963,662

31,297 $

317.741

349,038 $

383,417
13,000

754,038
385,353

450

1,536,258

151,774
38,460

580,808
194,643
34,091

5,091
472,774

],477,641

3,013,899

3,013,899

37,296 S

317,741

355,037 $

893,612
60

200,000
62,029
2,023

1,157,724

214,072

79,384

378,002
78.112

36,470

5,999

792,039

1,949,763

1,949,763

(5,999)

(5,999)

RECAPITULATION OF FUND BALANCE

38,461
316,576

355,037

106
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EXfflBFT C-3

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTE TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

GENERAL
FUND

SPECIAL
REVENUE

FUND
Sources/Inflows of Resources:

Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis) "Revenue"
From the Budgetary Comparison Schedule (C-Series)

Difference - Budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
eacumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related

revenue is recognized.

Current Year
Prior Year

The last state aid payments are recognized as revenue for
budgetary purposes and differs from GAAP

which does not recognize this revenue until the subsequent

year when the state recognizes the related expense

(GASB 33).

Current Year
Prior Year

Total Revenues as Reported on ttie Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental

Funds. (B-2)

Uses/outflows of resources:

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the

budgetary comparison schedule. (C-l, C-2)
Differences - budget to GAAP

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received is reported in the year the order is placed for

budgetaiy purposes, but in the year the supplies are received

for financial reporting purposes.

Total Expenditures as Rqsorted on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (B-2)

95,708,392 $ 3,051,195

(23.448)
79,422

(493,550)
441,273

$ 95,656,115 $ 3,107,169

$ 98,358.847 $ 3.013,899

55,974

$ 98,358,847 $ 3,069,873

109
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

PUBLIC EMTLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)
LAST TEN FISCAL YISARS*

School District's proportion of the net pension liability

School Uistticl'a propnrtronntc shart; ofltic ncl pension liability

School District's covered pyruH

School Disitricfs propnrtionate share of the net

punsionliuhiiilyasnpurecntueeufirB uovured pnyroll

Pian Hducuiry ml posilion a;! a percentage of
the lolal pcsmon liabilcly

2013 2022 3031 2020 201t> 201 B 20 !T 2016 2015 2014

0.1194612714%

1B.(CE,350 S

B,514,253 S

2!i.74'/i

0.1201657846%

14.235.439 S

KJOy.fiOT S

163.61%

0.lWIS2oyM%

19,565,933 t

S.621,065 !

226.95%

U.nSiOS4J47% U.H930^?UBU% 0.1231B54B%% 0.126260809SV. O.H7S7966S4% 0.liaiil7lS1% 0.112i30444y%

2L352.RE; S 23.49U24 S 2K.675.613 S 37,394.830 S 26.461,623 S 22,114,767 S 2j.4i0.356

lj,1S3,611 I S;Q(1,OS1 ]; K.54S.704 S 8,3S3,906 S S>0]9,520 ! 8>07B,S2S S

265.57% 335.4tl% 4dfi.03% 329.97% 274.111% www

mntK presented for each fiscal yc; dctcnnined as of the pi fiscal year end (the icnt date).



School Dirtrirt's ccintmctmilly required coniribution

Conlributions is relaliDB lo the
conlracllially Tcquired contribution

Contributiun deficiency (estccss

School Dislrici's covered payroS!

Contributions UB a percentage of cuvered payroll

1,506.464 S

(1,5(16,464) $

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF SCHOOL DISTRICT CONTRIBUTIONS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PIERS)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2017 2016 3015

(1,407,1KH S (1.312.54.1) S

li

2014

),152,709 S 1.186.74S S !.141.182 I 1,121,683 S 1.013,449 I 973,741 S E44.EKO

(1.152,71^ S _fl,186,74E) S _(1,141,1S2}S (l.!21,6E3) 5 (1,013.449) S (973.741) S (B44.«?

S 9.1SB..120 S K.5S-US3 S 8.700.699 S R.ffll.OfiS S S.153,611 i; 8^26.051 S K^49.70-I S N.319.906 S B.C1'),S2U t S,070.K2K

16.45% ld.i31M> 15.09% 13.37% 14.55% 13.87% 13.12% 12.09% 12.14% 10.47%

?



School Disiuricl'apiopunionurtbi; net pension liabiiily

School DiuUicl's ptoportiunalt abate of llw titl pCTsilon iiatiilily

Slnle's proponionate share nfthe net pension lubility

astticjnta) ivith the Sdiciul Disirict

Schcol Dialricl's Hivcied payroll

School Dislrict's proponionale share of Ihc net

paisionliabiiityasapCTtCTtngiiofte wvensd pnyroll

Finn fiducimy net position as a pnisnUEc a!

Lhc total poiGinn liability

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S I'ROrORTIONATlt SHARK. OFTHli NKT rSNSION I.IABIIJTY

TEACHERS' PENSION ANB ANNUITY FUNB fTPAFt
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS*

1;B.{M7,7t9

S 150.067,719 t

1.1S,(S.'».353

138.183.353 S

1K').TEi3,.tlO

189.793,410 s

174,625,526

] 74.625,52(1 s

1 K5.6n0.663

]R5,600.6fi3 I

199.684.01i

m,CT4.ni5 s

222,5 W.7W

222,510.7M s

577.241,72:

H7.Z41.722 !t

141,063.164

i4],(l(.3.164 s

137.997.15B

!.i7.OT7.15S

The anfflunLs prBfmlcri for GBch fisical yciu- were determined on of the pTcviou^ Dsral year end fthc Tnacasurcmcnt datoj.
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT
BENEFITS (GASB 75)
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

STATE HEALTH BENEFIT LOCAL EDUCATION RETIRED EMPLOYEES PLAN (OPEB)
LAST SDC FISCAL YEARS*

EXHIBIT M-l

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

K)

District's Total OPEB Liability

Service Cost

Interest Cost

Change in Benefit Terms

Difference between Expected & Actual Differences

Changes of Assumptions
Contributions: Member

Gross Benefit Payments

Net Change in District's Total OPEB Liability

District's Total OPEB Liability (Beginning)

District's Total OPEB Liability (EDding)

District's Covered Employee Payroll

District's Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Payroll

$ 8,910,818 $
4,422,886

4,982,085
(44,770,927)

140,545
(4,381,000)

(30,695,593)

197,590.017

S 166,894,424 S

$ 42,818,474 $

390%

10,3)7,562 $
5,125,693
(210,311)

(34,509,005)
194,938
131,039

(4,037,611)

(22,987,695)

220.577,712

197,590,017 $

42,299,660 $

467%

5,808,886 $
4,852,170

38,678,008
40,291,968

116,393
(3,840,076)

85,907,349

134,670,363

220,577,712 $

41,575,735 S

531%

5,796,526 $
5,980,651

(25,832,267)
2,007,946

122,543
(4,133.979)

(16,058,580)

150.728,943

134,670,363 $

37,168,509 S

362%

6,532,628 ;
6,394,505

(15,023,438)
(17,296,901)

139,298
(4,030,438)

(23,284,346)

174,013,289

150,728,943 :

38,961,498 ;

387%

$ 7,828,298
5,525,917

(22,989,673)
168,117

(4,565,617)

(14,032,958)

188.046,247

$ 174,013,289

$ 37,648,668

462%

Note - The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year end (the measurement date).

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the icqmrcment to show mformation for 10 years. However, untii a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years fo)

which infommtion is available.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART ID

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

PubUc_EmpIoyees* Retirement System ffERSl

Changes in Benefit Terms

The June 30, 2022 measurement date includes three changes to the plan provisions, only one of which had an impact on the

Total Pension Liability. Chapter 226, P.L. 2021 reopened the Prosecutors Part of PERS and made membership in the

Prosecutors Part ofPERS mandatory for all prosecutors.

Changes in Assumptions

The discount rate used as of June 30, measurement date is as follows:

Year

2022
2021
2020

sxpected rate

Year

2022
2021
2020

7.00%

7.00%

7.00%

; of return used as of

Rate

7.00%

7.00%

7.00%

Year

2019
2018
2017

Rate
6.28%

5.66%

5.00%

June 30, measurement date is as follows:

Year

2019
2018

..2017

Rate

7.00%

7.00%

7.00%

Year

2016
2015
2014

Year

2016
2015
2014

Rate

3.98%

4.90%

5.39%

Rate
7.65%

7.90%

7.90%

The mortality assumption was updated upon the direction from the Division of Pensions and Benefits.

Teachers Pension aad Annuity Fund FTPAF)

Changes in Benefit Terms

None.

Changes in Assumptions

The discount rate used as of June 30, measurement date is as follows:

Year

2022
2021
2020

7.00%

7.00%

5.40%

Year

2019
2018
2017

Rate

5.60%

4.86%

4.25%

;xpected rate of return used as of June 30, measurement date is as follows

Year

2022
2021
2020

Rate

7.00%

7.00%

7.30%

Year

2019
2018
2017

Rate

7.00%

7.00%

7.00%

Year

2016
2015
2014

Year

2016
2015
2014

Rate

3.22%

4.13%

4.68%

Rate

7.65%

7.90%

7.90%

The mortality assumption was updated upon the direction from the Division of Pensions and Benefits.
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State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan fOPEB)

Changes in Benefit Terms

The increase in benefit terms from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 was a resull of employers adopting and or changing Chapter

48 provisions which provide different levels of subsidy than m the prior year.

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experiences

The Increase in differences between expected and actual experiences from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 was a result of

changes to the census, claims and premiums expedeace.

Changes in Assumptions

The increase in changes in assumptions from June 30, 2021 to June 30, 2022 is a result of a change in the discount rate, trend

update and the mortality projection scale update.

The discount rate used as of June 30, measuremetit date is as follows:

Year

2022
2021
2020

Rate

3.54%

2.16%
2.21%

Year

2019
2018
2017

Rate

3.50%

3.87%

3.58%

Year

2016
Rate

2.85°,

The mortality assumption was updated upon the direction from the Division of Pensions and Benefits.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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D. School Based Budget Schedules

Not Applicable
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E. Special Revenue Fund
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
VEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT E-l

t>-l
UJ

Revenues:

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Otiier Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salaries of Other Professiooal Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
Supplies and Materials
Scholarships Awarded
Student Activities

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Titic 1 Title HA Title III Title IV LD.EA. - Basic

I.D.E.A. -

Preschool

124,207

$ 124,207 $

75,543

75,543 $

22,461

22,461 S

12,602

12,602 s

862,037

862,037 s

45,542

45,542

84,200 $

144

84,344

24,420
7,769

7,674

75,543

21,961 $

21,961

12,602

500

754,038
17,647

771,685

82,405
7,947

5,046

5,046

40,496

39,863

$ 124,207 $

s - $

75,543

75,543 $

$

500

22,461 $

s

12,602

12,602 $

.$..

90,352

862,037 $

...$...

40,496

45,542



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT E-l

w
-^

Revenues:
Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers
Purchased Professionai - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Insbruchon

Support Services:

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
Supplies and Materials
Scholarships Awarded
Student Activities

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Exccss/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/

(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

ARP I.D.E.A. - Basic

CRRSA-ESSER
ARP I.D.EA. - CARES Emergency CRRSA - ESSER II Learning CRRSA - ESSER

Preschool Relief Grant II Acceleration H Mental Health

$

35.469

$ 35,469

s

$

s

450

450 $

36,146

36, i 46

$

s

s

212,727

212,727 $

13,111

13,111

$

s

10,576

10,576

20,872
13,000

33,872

1,597

450

450

24,040 $

39

133,755

15,285

24,079 149.040

9,480
2,587

49,656
14,031

13,111 10,300

276

1.597

£ 35,469 $

$ - s

450 $

A.

12,067

36,146 $

A.

63,687

212,727 S

A.

13.111

13,111 $

-.$_

10,576

10,576



WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES ~ BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT E-l

Lh»
Lft

Revenues:
Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)

General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
Supplies and Materials
Scholarships Awarded

Student Activities

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/

(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

ARP - ESSER m

ARP-ESSERUI
Learning

Acceleration

ARP - ESSER HI
Mental Health ACSERS

SDA Emcrgcnt Non Public Ch.

Program 192 Auxiliary

345,337

345,337 $

98,589 $

93,176

191,765

154,687

154,687 S

68,218
12,476
45,692
20,775

6,411

136,657

18,030

327 42,040

327 $

327 42,040

162,683

162,683

52,776

42,040 $ 162,683 $ 52,776

52,776

153,572

$ 345,337 $

..$__............._.....................^_.........$.

154,687

154,687 $

A.

327

327 $

$

42,040

42,040 $

_$_

162,683

162,683 $

_t

52,776

52,776



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OP EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT E-l

w
0>

Revenues:

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers

Other Salaries for Instruction

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)

Supplies and Materials
Scholarships Awarded
Student Activities

Totai Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/

(Under) ExpeDditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

Non Public Ch. 193
Handicapped

$
60,428

$ 60.42 S

Non Public Nursmg

s
8,431

$ • 8,431.

Non Public Textbook

s
4,903

S 4,903

Non Public Secyrity

$ - a

15,785

S 15,785 S

Non Public
Technolpgy

)

3,238

; 3,238

4,903 15,785

4,903 15,785

60,428 8,431
3,238

60,428

$ 60,428 $

s - $

8,431

8,431 $

_s_

4,903 S

A_

15,785 $

.$_

3,238

3,238



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF PROGRAM REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGETARY BASIS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT E-l

.Loc.al0rmts...^^__^^^_^ Scholarship Totals

<^>
~~J

Revenues:

Local Sources

State Sources

Federal Sources

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

bistniction:

Salaries of Teachers

Purchased Professional - Educational Services

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services:

Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Personal Services - Employee Benefits

Purchased Educational Semces

Other Purchased Services (400-500 Series)
Supplies and Materials
Scholarships Awarded
Student Activities

Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/
(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balance, July 1

Fund Balance, June 30

234,528 $

234,528 $

233,328

233,328

1,200

502,434 $ 12,727

502,434 $ 12,727

5,091

749,689
308,244

1,993,262

3,051,195

383,417
13,000.00

754,038.00
385,353

450

1,536,258

151,774
38,460

580,808
194,643
34,091

5,091

1,200

S 234,528 $

$ - $

472,774

472.774

472,774 $

29,660

286,916

316,576 $

5,091

5,091 $

7,636

30.825

38,461 $

472,774

1,477,641

3,013,899

37,296

317,74!

355,037
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F. Capital Projects Fund

Not Applicable
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EXHIBIT F-l

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Year Proiect Title / Issue

2023 Renovations, Alterations and Improvemeuts at Various Schools - Referendum 2022

Total

Original
ApprQpriatiQns

66,599,208 $

Expenditures to Date
Prior Current

Years Year

$ 2,774,974 $

Unexpended

Balance
2023

63,824,234

66,599,208 $ $ 2,774,974 63,824,234

Reconciliation of Fund Balance, June 30, 2023

Unexpended Project Balances, June 30, 2023 $......... .63:,824,234

Total Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) - June 30,2023 63,824,234

Add: Reserve for Encumbrances

Less: Bond Proceeds Anticipated in Subsequent Year
2,321,200

(66,599,208)

Total Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) 'June 30,2023 (453,774)



EXHIBIT F-2

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchase Professional and Teclmical Services $ 1,990,774
Construction Services 784,200

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 2,774,974

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses (2i7?^?241

Fund Balance, July I

Fund Balance, June 30 $ (2,774,974)
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EXHIBIT F-2a

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGETARY BASIS

RENOVATFONS, ALTERATIONS AND IMPROVEMENTS AT VARIOUS SCHOOLS - REFERENDUM 2022
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Revised

Authorized
PnorYeais Current Year TotEtls Cost

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:

Debt Issuance $ - $ - $ - $ 66,599,208

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Expeaditures and Other Financing Uses:

Purchased Professional and Technical Service

Construction Services

Totai Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Uuder) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

1,990,774
784,200

2,774,974

S - $ (2,774,974) S

1,990,774
784,200

2,774,974

(2,774,974) $

66,599,208

7,684,525
58,914,683

66,599,208

Additional Project Infomiation:

Project Number

Bond Authorization Date

Bonds Authorized

Bonds Issued

Original Authorized Cost

Additional Authorized Cost

Revised Authorized Cost
Percentage Increase over Original Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion
Revised Target Completion Date

N/A
7/18/2023

$ 66,599,208
66,599,208
66,599.208

66,599,208
0.00%

4.17%

9/1/2026
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I. Long-Term Debt
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
LONG-TERM DEBT

SCHEDULE OF SERIAL BONDS PAYABLE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

EXHIBIT 1-1

ISSUE
DATE OF

ISSUE

AMOUNT
OF

ISSUE
ANNUAL MATURITIES
DATE AMOUNT

INTEREST
RATE

BALANCE
JUNE 30,

2022 RETIRED

BALANCE
JUNE 30,

2023

Pension Refunding Bonds 7/3/2012

School Refunding Bonds 4/22/2015

3,790,000

17,515,000 7/15/2023 $ 2,410,000 5.000%

Total

285,000 $

4,780,000

285,000 $

2,370,000 2,410,000

$ 5,065,000 $ 2,655,000 $^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^^2

-^
~~.l



EXmBIT 1-2

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
LONG-TERM DEBT

SCHEDULE OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCED PURCHASES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

PURPOSE

2019 School Buses (5)
2020 School Buses (7)
2022 School Buses (7)

AMOUNT OF
LEASE

$ 405,000
530,000
816,002

INTEREST
RATE

2.980%
2.466%
1.120%

Total

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING

JUNE 30,
2022

$ 83,880 i
215,633
542,502

$ 842,015 ;

RETIRED

S 83,880
106,503

163,924

E 354,307

AMOUNT
OUTSTANDING

JUNE 30,
2023

$
109,130
378,578

$ 487,708

-F^
co



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEBT SERVICE FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

EXHIBIT 1-3

•fe-
so

Revenues:

Local Sources:

Local Tax Levy
State Sources:

Debt Service Aid Type II

Total Revenues

Expenditures:

Regular Debt Service:
Interest
Redemption of Principal

Total Regular Debt Service

Total Expenditures

Excess/(Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)
Expendihires

Fund Balance, July 1,

Fund Balance, June 30,

ORIGINAL
BUDGET

$ 2,129,824

728,457

2,858,281

203,281
2,655,000

2,858,281

2,858,281

June 30,
BUDGET

TRANSFERS

$

(2,224)
2,224

2023
FINAL

BUDGET

$ 2,129,824

728,457

2,858,281

201,057
2,657,224

2,858,281

2,858,281

ACTUAL

$ 2,129,824

728,457

2,858,281

192,461
2,657.224

2,849,685

2,849,685

VAmANCE
FINAL TO
ACTUAL

$

8,596

8,596

8,596

8,596 8,596

8,596 $ 8,596
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STATISTICAL SECTION (Unaudited)

Third Section
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Financial Trends Information

Financial trends information is intended to assist the user hi understanding and assessing how the

School District's financial position has changed over time. Please refer to the following exhibits for

a historical view of the School District's financial performance. The Exhibits are presented for the
last ten fiscal years.
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EXIUBITJ-1

l/t
Lft

Oovemmeutai A.crivities;

Net Invcgtment in

Capital Assets

Restricted
Unrestneied (Deficit)

Total Governmental Activities

Net Position

Business-Type Aclmlics:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Unrestricted (Deficit)

Total Business-Type Activities

Net Assets

Districi-Widc;

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Rcstticted

Unrcsbricted (Deficit)

Total District Net Pusition

Source; ACFR Sclieduk A-t

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Acerual Basis of Accouniwg)

(UNA.UD1TED)

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 3D,
2621 2020

S 35,345,032 $
7,827.325

(17,933.939)

32,742,346 I
8,316,445

[18,440,395)

29,941,361 S 27,294,108
8,988,536 7,339,725

(21,444,981) (24,734.199)

20X9

23,668,548 $

2018 2017

22,614,140 S 20,341,432 S
7,007,106 7,879,125 6,045,607

(^'37^7^ (2^^.?^

2016

17,202,t>58

5,712,617
(25,626,679)

16,] 76,888
4,409,297

(24,643.354)

]3,242,009 S
4.312,842

(23.633,552)

26.327,703 $ 23,378,369 I 17,737,460 S 10,037,866 $ 4,658,575 $ 2,434,216 S (1,527,750) S (2,517,576) $ (3,924,684) $ (5,925,685) S

2013

]2,332,60B

4,452,232

(2.778,148)

s

s

$

35,238.4i8 I

21,905 $
1,067,380

1,089,285 $

22,618,396 $

34,773 $
725,200

759,973 S

17,484,916

51,888
200,656

252,544

s

s

$

9,899,634 $

66,949 $
71,283

138,232 -E

4,301,284 S

82,010 S
275.28i

357.291 $

2,129,718

94,376
210,122

304,498

s

s

$

0,8i8,066) S

109,259 $
181.057

290,316 $

(2,7i1,104) $

96,696 $
96,832

193,528 $

(4.057,16?) $

110,091 $
22,394

132,485 i

re.078.701)

124.473

28,543

153,016

s

s

s

14,006.692

136,138
74,313

210,453

$ 35,366,937 $ 32,777,319 S 29.993,249 $ 27,361,057 S 23,750,558 $ 22,708,516 S 20,450,691 I 17,299,654 $ 16,286,979 S 13,366,482 S 12,468,746
7,827,325 8,316,445 8,988,536 7,339,725 7,007,106 7,879,125 6,045,607 5,712.617 4.409,297 4,312,842 4.452.232

(36,866,559) (!7,715,19S) (2 (25,529,847) (24,620,960) (23,605,009) (2,703,835)

14,217.143



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
CHANGES IN NET POSFTION - (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-2

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 3B,

Expenses:

Governmental Activities

Instruction:

Regular

Special Education

Vocational Education

Other Iiistroction

Schooi Sponsored Cocumcular/Athletics

Support Services;:

Student & Instruction Related Services

General Aciministration

Scliool Administration
Plant Operations & Maintenance

Student Transportation

Business/CentrsI and Other Support Services

Charter Schools
bileresl and Charges on Long-Temi Debl

Total Govemmentai Activities

Expenses

t—i Busmess-Type Activities:

^ Food Service
Before and After School Programs

Ctaomebooks

Total Busincss-Typc Activities

Expense

Total District Expenses

Program Revenues;

Chaiges for Services

Instruction (Tuition)
Pupil Transportation
Rentals

Operatmg Grants St Coulritiulions

Capital Grants & Contributions

Total Governmental Activities

Program Revenues

Busriness-Type Activities:

Charges for Services:

Food Serrice

Before and After School Programs

Chromcbooks

Operating Giaals & Contributions

Total Business Type Activities

Program Revenues

Total District Program Revenues

$

A.

s

s

2023

36,462,029 $
15,558,333

785,091
1.498,210
1,694.) 10

12,175,683

1,641,072
4,214,699
9,307,757
7,146,575
2,131,303

6BB.772
9,616

?3.313,250

1,384,212
309,318
29,500

1,723.030

95,036,2B() S

1,114,511 S

15,680,141

16,794,652

1,079,163
389,251

2,400
559,OS3

2,02i»,897

18,824,549 $

2022

36,105.223 S
56,199,835

783,627
1.64S.927

1,694,050

11,650,811
1,658,063
4,358,621
9,815,648

7,733,009
2,OBO,582

121,253

93.B49.64S

1,575,238

302,935

1,R7R,173

95,727.821 S

98y,434 S

20,648,870

21,638,304

432,562
3S3,,502

330
1,567,526

2,3B3,920

24,022,224 $

2021

40.94M29 S
19,057,565

950,667
1,956,606
1,651,602

10,471.758
1,324,784
4,322,841
1,049,595
1,055,400
9,138,571
5,012,307

204.409

97,144,934

1,132,465
288,259

1,420,724 •

98.565,65R S

927,171 $
500

20,800
26,958,831

27,907,302

38,001
23B,?71

531
U07.553

1,485.056

29,392.358 $

2020

36,]31,6i!6 S.

17,029,615
805,995

1.741.541
1,515,024

• 9,639.655

1.157,589

4,002,342
7,921,174

5,681,202
1,794,254

303,090

87,723,167

1.350,848
440,693

1,791,541

89,514,708 $

1,135,336 $
350

33,560
17,534,226

18,703,472

845,023
354,511
28,830

28B,796

1,517,160

20,320,632 $

2019

36,508,007 $
16.858,330

620,206
1,777,481
2,024,421

11,362,762
2,986,703
4,775 J 29
8,635,521
5,819,040
1,858.143

364.205

93,589,948

1,494.552
473,708

1,968.260

95,558,208 $

879,340 S
4,419

120,333
26,352,905

54,872

27,411,869

1,268,380
457,439

295,234

2,021,053

29.432,922 $

2018

39,377,966 $
18,001,939

631.973
1,804,832
2,157.394

11,454,012
2,367,353
5,3B3,818
8,213,055
5,869,426
1,857,613

418,974

97.538.355

1,507,486
416,661

!,924,147

99,462,502 $

620.035 S

109,346
32,776,510

13B,6B8

33.644,579

1,226,757
448,023

263,549

1,938,329

35,582.908 S

2017

37,630,745 $
17,072,291

593,542
1,65],3S6
2,036,227

i 1,073,493
2,374,618
5,172,594
8,476,832
5,644,337
1,428,365

413,056

93,567,486

1,489,665
383.074

1,872,739

95,440.225 $

534,055 !

111,727
27,093,553

£17,496

28,558,831

1,258,939
404,372

282,717

1,946,028

30,504.859 $

2016

33.6?8,651 S
15,035,647

590,732
1.609,390
1,788,657

9,082,279
2,199,742
4.729.551
7,452,065
5,036,208
1,582,559

S66.&35

84,572,406

1,484,453
303.791

1,78B.244

86,360,650 S

411,075 $

44,570
21,150,066

35,109

21.640,820

1,243,504

334,296

271,487

1,849,287

23,490,107 $

201 S

31,427,530 $
13,806.763

600.106
1,393,728
1,601,878

9,205,306
2,368,038
4.530,340
7.079,295
4,904,733

1,642,036

913,9?3

79,473,746

1,469,775
14,002

1,483,777

80,957,523 $

411,303 $

25,552
17,563,405

766,032

18,766,292

1,213,004
19.080

23U62

1,463,246

20,229,538 S

2014

2fi,S86,B31i
11.694,226

654,740
1,!41>619
\y!9AW

8,809,469
2,045,764
3,913,365



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EBUCATION
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING)

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(UNAUDFTED)

EXHIBIT J-2

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,

LA
~~j

Net (Bxpense)/Re venue:

Governmental Activities
Busincss-Typc Activities

Tutal District-Widc Nd Expense

Oeaeral Revenues & Oriier Changes in Net Position;

Governmental Activities:

Property Taxes Levied for General
Purposes, Net S

Taxes Levied for Debt Semcc

State/FedeiaI Aid Souroes

Investmeisl Earnings

Miscellaneous Income

Total Govcromsntai Activities

Business-Type Activities:

Investment Earnings

Board ContributioBS
Miscellaneous

Tutal Business-Typc Activities

Total District-Wide

CIiange in Net Position:
Governmental Activities

Total District

2023 2622 2021 2C20 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

S (76,518,598) S
306,867

$ (76,2H,73t) I

(72,211,344)
505,747

(71.705.597)

s

_s_

(69,237,632) $
64,332

(69,173,300) I

(69,019,695)
(274,381)

(69,294.076)

s

_t_

(66,178,079)
52,793

(66,125,286)

s

s

(63,893,776) $
14, i 82

(63.879,594) $

(65,008,655) !
73.289

(64,?35,366) $

(62,931,586) $
61,043

(62,870,543) $

(60,707,454) $
(20,531)

(60,727,985) $

(60,340,109)
(57,435)

(60,397.544)

70,521,283 $
2 J 29,824
6.247,122

240,391

69,138,513 S
2,323,473
5.607.415

275,423

67,782,856 S
2,355,338
5,985,810

117,492
31,786

65,973,388 S
2,340,889

5,972.460
95,963

235,345

65,330,579 $
2,330,571

449.440
88.398

150,657

64,053.498 S
2,324,431

461.720
41,107

960.804

62>797,547 S
2.319,37t

460,086
7,995

265,021

60,945,106 I
2,471,421

497.916

363,208

59,750,104 $
2,406.906

496,096

75,880

58,578,533
2,450,941

491,611

163,98-?

79,138,620

22,445

22,445

$ 79.161.065 $

S 2,949,334 I

$ 2,949,334 $

77,344,824

1,682

1,682

77,346,506 $

5,640,909 S

5,640.909 $

76,273,282

890
49,090

49,980

76.323,262 $

7,149,962 S

7,149,962 S

74,618,045

322

55,000

55.322

74,673,367 5

5,379,291 $

5.379,291 S

68,349,645

6B.349.645 $

2,224,359 S

2,224,359 S

67,841,560

67.841.560 $

3,?61,966 $

3,961,966 $

65,850.020

65.850.020 I

914,654 $

914,654 S

64,277,651

64,277,651 $

i,407, JOB $

1.407. SOS S

62,728,986

62.728,986 $

2,001,001 S

2,001.001 $

61.685,072

61,685.072

1,287,528

3,287.52B

Source: ACFR Schedule A-2



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
FUND BALANCES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

CUNAUDITED)

EXHIBIT J-3

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30,

General Fund:
Restricted
Commitled

Assigned

Unassigsed

Total General Fund

All Other Governmental Funds:

Restricted

Total All Other Goveromeatal

Funds

2023

S 7,917,466 $

1,897,657
1,963,720

S 11,778,843 $

£ (90,141) $

$ (90,141) $

2022

7,998,704 S

3.429,366
3.053,505

14,48L575.-_S

317,741 S

357741 S

2021

; 8,731.545 $

3,943.874
2,918,140

; 15,593,55? $

; 256,991 S

; 256,991 J,

2020

7.088,522 $

3,161,694
1.323,780

11,573,996 $

251,203 $

251,203 $

2019

8,034,903 $
1,679,277

810,283
600,499

11,124,962, S

251,203 $

251,203 $

2018

8,377,795 $
412,131
465,916
854,228

10,110,070 $

196,330 $

196,330 $

2017

5,688,945 S
554,785
113,521
851.602

7.208,853 S

388,575 $

388,575 $

2016

4.349,605 S
473.561

250,573
838,479

5,912,218 $

1.618,425 $

1,618,425 $

2015

4,777,176 $

380,336
756J26

5.9 i 4.23 8., $

230,621 $

230,621 $

2014

5,581,124

481,259
777,632

6,840,015

614,029

614,029

Lft
00

Source: ACFR Schedule B-I



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OP EDUCATION
CHANGES IN FUND BALATiCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS,

LAST T£N FISCAL YEARS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting)

2(Hfi 2014

(^
w

Revenues

Tax Levy
Tuition Charges
Interest Earnings

Transportalion
Rental Fees
Miscellaneous
State Sources
Federal Sources.

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Instruction:

jRegulnr iHsbuction
Special Education instruction

Vocational Education - Tuition

Other Insbuclian
School Sponsored Activities & Athletics

Support Services;
Attendance & Social Work Services
Healtli Services

Student & Insinictioti Related Semccs
General Adminisbwtion

School Administeation

Plant Operations & Maintenance

Student Transportation
Btisiness/Cenrtal &. Olbei Support SCTVICCS

UnaUocated Benefits
On Behalf TPAF Pension and Social

Security Contributions
Charter Schools
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal
Interest &. Other Charges
Bond Issuance Costs
Payments to Escrow Agent

Total Expend) lures

Other Financing Sources/(Uscs):
Canccllatitrti of Payable

Financed Purchases (Non-Budgeted)
Piocccds From R-cfunding

Payments to Escrow Agent
Origraa! Issue Premiums

Transfers in
Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sourccs/(Uscs)

Net Cliange in Fund Balances

Delit Service as a Percentage of
Noncapjlal Expecdilures

72,651,107 I

1.114,511
75,395

95.895

818,790
24,757,535
2,!OS,332

7I.461,9S6 S
989.434

92,497

44,409
96.B42

513,330
23,811,993
2,487.216

70,138,1?4 !

927,171
117,492

500
20,800

365,055

19,536.778
1.640,068

68,314.277 $

1.135,336

95,963
350

33,560
249,510

17.154,359
1,602.578

67,661,150 S

K79.J40
BS,398

4,419

120333
192.912

35,807.660
1,369.401

fi6,377,ii2? S

620,035
41,107

10?,346
992,999

14,474,825
1.335,270

65,116,?18 I

534,055
7,995

Hi,727
275,944

13,704.580
1.270,302

63,416,527 S

411.075

44,570

386,498

11,781,724
1,320,511

62.157,010 I

411.303

25,552

95,127

11,437,055
1.294.798

61.029.474

348,355

20.300
164,451

9,65S,196
1,452,249

!01,62!,565 99,497,707

816,002

92,746,RSS BS,535.933 86,123,613 83,951.511 R1.021,521 77,3fi0,905 75,42fi,R45

43,i41
935,000 300,000 337,000 205.364

17,515.000

(19,335.000)
2,395,896

72,673,025

24,255,103
10,349,643

i94,522
996,632

1,282,891

676.6 i4
859,600

7,684,011
1,242,727

3,191,646

7,315,064
5,411,855
1,613,963

] 6.427,279

17,532,808

523.5S3
1,918,773

2,657.224
200,241

104,732,179

23,532,978
10.558,869

570,885
1,074,753
1,234,14s

720.518
670,474

7,096,8)6
1,207,926

3.175,327
7,4d2,499

5,633,625

1.515.73B
14,326,352

17,410,619

2,085,684

2,755,000

332,738

101,364,943

22,553,602
!0,49fi.436

678,770
1,077,650
1,17P,233

7U3.405
702,531

6,070,828
?45.687

3,OK6,479
6,696,250

3,578,753

1,502.951
11,690,076

13,544,999

1.595,342

2.660.000

45B.05B

89,221,250

21,625,099
10,192.358

626,879

1,042,326

1.178,340

649,565
603,941

6,243,?24

900,338
3, U 2.900
6,400,031

4,418,666

1,395,517
11.438,723

11,176.786

3,970,890

2,525,000

573,757

BK.075,040

3i.437,3]8
14.777.B35

620,206

1,518,521

1,767,414

10,22S,44K

1,068,454
4,433,677
8,158,857

5,2 S 3,044

1,742,002

1,686,432

2,665,816

673.B24

B5,988.84S

29,999,268
14,233,956

631,973

1,360.592

1,6E6,9S5

9,415.559

1,074,753
4.250.464
7,249,392

5,008,659

1,597,477

1,700,822

2,578.656
753,9S3

81,542,539

29,244,160
13,786.105

593.S42

1,266,809

1,621365

?.390,5?8

1,090.756
4,208,25?

7,634,816

4.9! 4,773

1,351,770

2,531,137

2.494,964
825,682

80,954.736

28,330,042
12,971,052

S9G.722
1,341,752

1,535.470

9,224,273

1,010.506
4,193,626
7,212.942

4,647,740

],520,373

310,619

2,730,213
692,791

76,312.121

27.611,387
i2,393,K41

600,106

1,215,187

1.430,623

E.780,042
1,229,571
4,!5S.S22

6,985,1 BE

4.616,572

1,619,747

3,8&4,32R

2,39)^73
1,008.707

188,380
387,316

77.511,290

26,785,953
i 1,689,276

654,740
1,140,986

1,278.933

8.666,001
1.041,049

3.911.335
7,191,146

4,78S,364

!,619,340

913,464

2,2S9,9B9
1.083,524

73.054,100

440,628

S f3,110,6I4) t

816.002

(1,05!,234) S

251,202

(300,292)

(49,U90)

3,475,7 !R $

(55,000)

(11.8S9)

449.034 S

935,000

1.0WJ65 S

300,000

2,708,972 S ?,7f.S $

1,434.780
(1,434,7RO)

337,000

1,385,784 S

826,800
(B26,8&0)

781.260

(1,309,1S5) $

592,789
(592,789)

440.628

5?,5S3.

3,96% 4.17%

Source: ACFR Scheduie B-2



WALL TOWNSmF BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND . OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAKS
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accountmg)

(UNAUDITED)

EXHIBFF j-s

FISCAL
YEAR ENDING

JUNE 30.

2023
2022
2021
2020
2019
20)8
2017
2016
2015
2014

INTEREST
ON

INVESTMENTS REIMBURSEMENTS

$ 75,395 $ - 3
92,497

117,492
95.963
88,398
41,107

7,995

77,647

1 1,114.511
989,434
927,171

1,135,336
879,340
620,035
534,055
411,075
411,303
348,355

DEMAND

s

21,135
16,164
23,246

PRIOR YEAR
PAYABLES

CAPiCJELX.eP

$

43,14i
11,575

759,106
74,708

TRANSPQRTATION

I
44,409

500
350

4.419

49,790

95,895
96,842
20,800
33,560

120,333
109,346
111,727
44,570
25.552
20.300

GRANT PROCEEDS
FOR PRIOR YEAR

CAPITAL PROJECTS

114,212

INSURANCE
PROCEEBS

i

174,767

MISCELLANEOUS

? 6?,IOI $
41,674
80,876

247,204
117.947
185,534
52,855
61,004
75,880

163,987

TQTAL

1,354,902
1,264,856
1,146.839
1,555,554

1,243,147
1.731,292
1,886,927
1.382,412
3.030,953
1,854,067

Total 518,847 $ 77.647 S 7.3 70,6 i 5 $ 60,545 $ 888,530 S 49,678 $ 49,790 I 67B.925 £ 114,212 S 174.767 £ 1.096.062 $ 14,450.949

Source; District Rueordii

0̂



Revenue Capacity Information

Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the factors

affecting the School District's ability to generate revenues. Please refer to the following exhibits for

a historical view of these factors and how they relate to the School District's ability to generate

revenues.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
ASSESSED VAtUE ANO ACTUAL VALUE OP TAXABtE PROFERW,

LAST TEN FISCAL YEAHS

P1SCAL
YEAR
ENDED

JUNE 30,

2014 3
20i5
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

VACANT
LAND

67,764,300
6SJB5.400
S5,540.500
86.395.800
87.939.400
&4,756,900
86.233.BOO
77,878,000

100,665,700
i09,727,£(i0

RESIDENHAL

S 2,619,263,000 S
2,817,6S!,600
4,5C5.SS5,990
4,498,740,<)90
4,505.SS4,900
4,519,487,200
4,539.92B,100
4,55t!,054,400
4,5i!S,338,100
4,647,1B4,BOO

FARM
BEG^

31.125,700 I
32.13B.900
46,534,000
44,629,300
48,343,000
39.430,000
36,714.700
39,002,700
35,583,300
36,873,300

>FARM

: 859.900
806.500
765.200
704,900
760,300
719,600
708,500
679,200
661.000

669,600

COMMERCIAL

$ 609.691,300
607.903.100

1.014.262.500
i.o 14,41 s.aoo
1.056.9B4.200
1,059,098.600
1.093,421.500
1,097,421,600
1.107.103,700
1.131,701,400

INBUSTRIAL

S 141,331.000
139,006,100
240,969.300
240,639,200
256.938,000
228.680,700
22B.?86,100
240.484,600
267.263,800

268,571,000

APARTMENT

S 21.S39.6W S
24,981,100
46.B91.700
46,B")1,700
46.891,700
46,309,200
45.533.400
45,533,400
45,533,400
45.533.400

TOTAL
ASSESSED

VAHJE

3,?1,S74,80&
3,687,702,700
5,?40.819,m
5.932,480,690
5,996.441,500
5.978,482,200
6,031.526,100
(1,059.053,900
6,145,M9,000
6,231.261,300

LESS;
TAX

EXEMPT PUBUC
PROPEHaTY imLITUES

$ - ! 5,325,309 3
5,150,110
7,953,969
8,063,235
7,R34,S35

NET
VALUATION

TAXABl.jE

> 3.697.200,109
3,692.852,810
5,?4B,773,159
5,?40.543,KS
6,004,266,035
5.97S,4B2,200
6,031,526,100
6.059,053,900
6,145,149,000
6.231.261,300

TOTAL
DIRECT
SCHOOL

TAX RATE

1.666 S
1.700
1.080
1,107
1.123
1.138
I.MR
1.16B
1.373
1.186

ACTUAL
(COUNTY

EQUALIZED}
VALUE

5,6i 4372,406
5,602.708,447
5,924.070,513
6,l;f!,451.633
6.15B,959,538
6,348,046,083
6.661.082,532
6,726,555,593
8,085,722,368
9,130,053.187

Source; M(innioutbCoua(y Board of Taxation
Real property is requireii to be assessed at some pe;ccntagc oftruevului; (fair or market value) established by each county buard of taxation.

Rcassessrncnt occurs when ordered by the County Board of Taxation
a. TaxabSc Value ofMachinety. Implements and Equipmca! orTclcphone, Telegraph and Messenger System CompamcE
h, TaxratcsatcpetSlOO

<y\
w



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPmG PROPERTY TAX RATES

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value)

EXHIBIT J-7

0^
-t^

FISCAL
YEAR

ENDED
JUNE 30,

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

TOTAL

2.825
2.888
1.813
1.847
1.884
1.947
1.983
1.942
1.952
1.984

SCHOOL DISTRICT

1.666
1.700
1.080

1.107
1.123
1.138
1.148
1.168
1.173
1.186

MUNICIPAL

0.708
0.722

0.448
0.453
0.459
0.463
0.463
0.470
0.474
0.487

COUNTY

0.403
0.416
0.253
0.254
0.256
0.299
0.309
0.254
0.253
0.256

QTHE

0.048
0.050
0.032

0.033
0.046
0.047
0.063
0.050
0.052
0.055

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

Note: N.J.S.A. 18A:7F"5d limits the amount that the District can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy, when
added to other components of the District's net budget, may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by



EXHIBIT J-8

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL PROPERTV TAX PAYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2023
% OF TOTAL

TAXABLE DISTRICT NET
ASSESSED ASSESSED

Taxpayer VALUE VALUE

DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Total $ - 0.000%

2014
% OF TOTAL

TAXABLE DISTRICT NET
ASSESSED ASSESSED

Taxpayer VALUE VALUE

DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Total $ - 0.000%

Source: Municipal Tax Assessor

N/A - Information was not available at reporting time
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EXHIBIT J-9

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

FISCAL
YEAR

ENDED
JUNE 30,

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

TAXES
LEVIED FOR
THE FISCAL

YEAR

; 61,029,474 $

62,157,010
63,416,527
65,116,918
66,377,929
67,661,150
68,314,277
70,138,194
71,461,986
70,521,283

YEAR OF THE LEVY

AMOUNT

61,029,474
62,157,010
63,416,527
65,116,918
66,377,929
67,661,150
68,314,277
70,138,194
71,461,986
70,521,283

PERCENTAGE
OF LEVY

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

IN
SUBSEQUENT

YEARS

Source: District records mcluding the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)
a. School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is

required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in the amount voted upon or certified prior to the
end of the school year.
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Debt Capacity Information

Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the School
District's debt burden and its ability to issue additional debt. Please refer to the following exhibits

for historical view of the School District's outstanding debt and it's debt capacity.
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

EXHIBIT J-10

0-
'sO

FISCAL
YEAR

ENDED
JUNE 30,

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

OBLIGATION
BONDS

$ 26,660,000
22,575,000
19,985,000
17,740,000
15,420,000
13,005,000
10,480,000
7,820,000
5,065,000
2,410,000

GENERAL UNAMORTIZEDUNAMORTIZED
BOND

PREMIUMS

$
2,395,896
2,073,399
1,628,638

1,250,283
923,643

651,115
425,379
239,408
97,631

FINANCE
PURCHASE

AGREEMENTS

$ 348,887
427,978
624,765
374,801
416,145

1,100,329

787,139
546,403
842,015
487,708

TOTAL
DISTRICT

S 27,008,887
25,398,874
22,683,164
19,743,439
17,086,428
15,028,972

11,918,254
8,791,782
6,146,423
2,995,339

POPULATION

25.902
25,887
25,891
25,813

25,690
25,602

25,518
26,467
26,375
N/A

PER CAPITA
INCOME

67,481
70,766
73,074
75,876
79,249
82,270
86,091
82,551

N/A
N/A

PERSONAL
INCOME

1,747,892,862
1,831,919,442
1,891,958,934
1,958,587,188
2,035,906,810
2,106,276,540
2,196,870,138
2,184,877,317

N/A
N/A

OUTSTANDING
DEBT RATIO

1.55%
1.39%
1.20%
1.01%
0.84%
0.71%
0.54%
0.40%
N/A
N/A

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.
See Exhibit J-14 for personal income and population data.



EXHIBIT J-ll

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

00

FISCAL
YEAR

ENDED
JUNE 30,

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

GENERAL
OBLIGATION

BONDS

$ 26,660,000
22,575,000
19,985,000
17,740,000
15,420,000
13,005,000
10,480,000
7,820,000
5,065,000
2,410,000

UNAMORTIZED
BOND

PREMIUMS

$
2,395,896
2,073,399
1,628,638
1,250,283

923,643
651,115
425,379
239,408

97,631

NET
GENERAL
BONDED

DEBT
DEDUCTIONS OUTSTANDING

S - $ 26,660,000
24,970.896
22,058,399
19,368,638
16,670,283
13,928,643
11,131,115
8,245,379
5,304,408
2,507,631

PERCENTAGE
OF ACTUAL
TAXABLE
VALUE OF
PROPERTy

0.48%
0.38%
0.33%
0.29%
0.24%
0.20%
0.17%
0.12%
0.07%
0.03%

PER CAPITA

1,029
872
772
687
598
509
441
315

N/A
N/A

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.



EXHIBIT J-12

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAMD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

JUNE 30, 2023

NET
DEBT

Municipal Debt:
Wall Township Board of Education (as of June 30,2023) $ 5,065,000
Township of Wall 31 ,482,870

Subtotal, Overlapping Debt 36,547,870

Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:
Mounmouth County:
County ofMonmouth 485,746,546

Total Direct & Overlapping Debt $ 522,294,4 3 6

Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by the Monmouth County Board of Taxation.

Debt Outstanding data provided by each governmental unit.

Note; Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with fhe geographic boundaries of the District.
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by fhe residents
and businesses of Wall. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and repay long-term

debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not

imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment.

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable Is estimated using taxable assessed

property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determinmg the portion of another governmental unit's taxable
value that is within the District's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total Eaxabie value.
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EXHIBIT 1-13

-~]
t^>

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
(Dollars itt Thousands)

FISCAL VEAR

Debt Limit

Total Net Debt Applicable to Limit

Legal Debt Margin

s

s

2023

212,370,668

2,410,000

209,960.668

s

s

2022

204,978,604

5,065,000

199,913,604

s

s

2021

195,967,337 $

7,820.000

188,147,337 $

2U20

190,325,093

10,4SO,(}00

179,845,093

s

s

2019

244,761,800 S

13,005,000

231,756,500 $

2018

236,601,951 $

15,420,000

221.1Sl,95i $

2017"

229.784.067 $

17.740.00U

212,044,067 $

2016

223,373,044 S

19,985,000

203,388,044 S

2U1S

223,407.044 S

22,575,000

200,632,044 £

2014

230,438,397

26,660,000

203,778,397

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Limit
as a Pe?centage of Debt Limit 2,47% 3.9?% 5.51% 5.31%

Leea) Debt Marein CalcuiatiaB
Equalized Valuation Basis

2022
2021
2020

6.52%

7,330,697,290
7,221,756,734
6,684,612,767

8.9S% 10.10%

! 1,23.7,066,791.

Average Equalized Valuation of Taxable Property

Debt Limil (3% of Average Equalization Value)
Net Bonded School DiAl

Legal Debt Matgin

Source: Equalized valuation bases were obtained from the Momnontli County Board ofTaxatioo

7.079,022.264

212,370,668
2.410,000

209,960.668

11.57%



Demographic and Economic Information

Demographic and economic information is intended (1) to assist users in understanding the

socioeconomic environment within the School District operates and (2) to provide information that

facilitates comparisons of financial statement information over time and among school districts.

Please refer to the following exhibits for a historical view of the demographic and economic
statistics and factors prevalent in the location in which die School District operates.
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EXHIBIT J-14

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

YEAR

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

Sources:

a Population information provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

b Personal income has been estimated based upon die municipal population and per capita

personal income presented.

c Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2000 Census published

by the US Bureau of Economic Analysis.

d Unemployment data provided by the NJ Department of Labor and Workforce Development.

POPULATION (a)

25,902
25,887
25,891
25,813
25,690
25,602
25,518
26,467
26,375

N/A

PER CAPITA
PERSONAL
INCOME (c)

67,481
70,766
73,074
75,876
79,249
82,270
86,091
92,119

N/A
N/A

UNEMPLOYMENT
RATE (d)

5.37%
4.90%
4.30%
3.90%
3.60%
3.00%
8.00%
5.20%
3.10%
N/A
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EXHIBIT J-l 5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOAJEU> OF EDUCATION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

2023
PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL
EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT

DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Total

Total Employment - (Estimated)

0.00%

2014
PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL
EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT

DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Total

Total Employment - (Estimated)

0.00°/o

Source: Township of Wall, Clerk's Office.

N/A - Information was not available at reporting time

176



Operating Information

Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about the School District's
operations and resources to assist readers in using financial statement infomiation to understand and

assess the School District's economic condition. Please refer to the following exhibits for a

historical view of the factors and statistics pertinent to the School District's operations.
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EXHIBIT J-16

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCT10N/PROGRAM

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Functum/Program 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 201^^^^^^^^^^^^^^ 2

Instruction:

Regular
Special Education

Other Instruction

Support Services:
Student & Instruction Related Services
General Administration
School Administrative Services

Central Services
Administrative Information Technology
Plant Operations & Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Total

~~j
*•£>

Source: District Personne] Records

249
161
233

115
7

30
7
8

98
58

964

258
171
230

115
6

32
7
6

105
58

988

261
173
230

120
6

32
7
6

106
62

1,003

259
171
222

116
6

33
7
6

106
62

988

259
165
213

119
6

32
7
6

105
60

971

268
168
199

110
6

32
7
6

100
63

958

271
161
194

122
6

31
7
6

99
64

959

274
156
164

99
6

30
7
6

104
66

912

275
161
155

105
6

30
7
6

99
68

911

260
146
157

92
4

30
8
5

88
66
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WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

EXHIBiT J-17

OPERATING
FISCAL EXPENDmjRES
YEAR ENROLLMENT (a)

2023
2022
2021
2020
201?
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014

COST PER PERCENTAGE TEACHING
PUPrL CHANGE STAFF (b)

358
353
371
417
417
419
418
400
400
402

3,112 $
3,258
3,196
3,311
3,351
3,410
3,460
3,606
3,649
3,716

78,831,677 ?
75,630,306
70,962.851
68,798,610
80,962,776
76,509,078
75,102,953
72,578,498
70.641,086
68,767,123

25,332
23,214
22,204
20.779
24,161
22,437
21,706
20,127
19,362
1S.50S

14.09%
4.55%
6.86%

-14.00%

7.68%
3.37%
7.84%
3.95%
4.61%
5.05%

M

1:08,3
1:09,3
1:07,5
1:08.4
1:08.4
1:08.4
1:08.7
1:08.9
1:08.9
1:08.4

PUPIL/
TEACHER
RATIO (d)

MIDDLE

1:09.!
1:09.3

1:08.8
1:07.8
1:07.8
1:07.7
1:08.1

• 1:08.8

1:09.0
1:09.3

HIGH

AVERAGE AVERAGE
DAILY DAILY

ENROLLMENT ATTENDANCE
(ADE) (c) (ADA) (c)

1:08.1
1:09.1
1:08.9
1:07.6
1:07.6

1:08.0
1:08.0
1:09.3
L08.S
1:09.3

3,193
3.254
3.147
3,3BO
3,380
3.399
3,454
3,588
3,572
3,629

rE

WE
:)

3,009
3.078
3,007
3,301
3.301
3.326
3.436
3.475
3,454
3,508

% CHANGE IN
AVERAGE

DAILY
ENROLLMENT

-1.87%

3.42%
-6.8$%

0.00%
-0.55%

-1.61%

-3.73%

0.45%
-1.57%

-5.72%

STUDENT
ATTENDAJNCE
PERCENTAGE

94.22%
94.58%
95.57%
97.66%
97.66%
97.87%
99.46%
96.85%
96.70%
96,67%

ec
o

Sources: District records

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count from the year prior.
a Operating expenditures equal tolal expenditures less debt service, capital outlay, and on-bchalfTPAF Pension and reimbursed TPAF social security

contributions. J-4

b Teaching staff includes only futl-time equivalents of certificated staff.
c Average daily snroliment and average daily atteadance are obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS).
d Pypil/Teacher ratio was obtained from the Comparative Speading Guide



WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

EXHIBIT J-18

mSTRICT BUILDINGS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Elementary Schools:

AUenvrood

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

Central

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment (a)

Old Mill
Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

West Beknar

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

Middle School:
Intermediate

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

High School:
Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

Primary:

Square Feet

Capacity (Students)
Enrollment

49,920
521
403

56,110
596
502

56,440
560
366

39,360
276
166

126,000
1,009
764

186,340
1,394

917

5,970
60
74

49,920
521
408

56,110
596
509

56,440
560
361

39,360
276
172

126,000
1,009
777

186,340
1,394

966

5,970
60
65

49,920
521
375

56,110
596
476

56,440
560
347

39,360
276
167

126,000
1,009
778

186,340
1,394

985

5,970
60
54

49,920
521
364

56,110
596
427

56,440
560
326

39,360
276 •

144

126,000
1,009
779

186,340
1,394
1,051

5,970
60
55

49,920
521
406

56,110
596
538 .

56,440
560
380

39,360
276
173

126,000
1,009
775

186,340
1,394
1,021

5,970
60
58

49,920
521
391

56,110
596
526

56,440
560
381

39,360
276
181

126,000
1,009
787

186,340
1,394
1,094

5,970
60
50

49,920
521
380

56,110
596
522

56,440
560
404

39,360
276
186

126,000
1,009
811

186,340
1,394
1,100

5,970
60
57

49,920
521
348

56,110
596
504

56,440
560
402

39,360
276
203

126,000
1,009
887

186,340
1,394
1,190

5,970
60
55

49,920
521
348

56,110
596
507

56,440
560
420

39,360
276
199

126,000
1,009
921

186,340
1,394

1,184

5,970
60
50

49,920
521
359

56,110
596
506

56,440
560
434

39,360
276
212

126,000
1,009
940

186,340
1,394
1,197

5,970
60
36



EXHIBIT J-18

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

DISTRICT BUILDINGS 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Virtual:

Enrollment 0 0 N/A 165 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Other:

Superintendent's Building
Square Feet- 2,880

Business Office

Square Feet- 5,760

Technology Building
Square Feet- 1,069

Tech. Storage Barn

Square Feet-1,296

Maintenance Building
Square Feet- 4,756

M Red Storage Barn

Square Feet - 960

Special Service BIdg. 1

Square Feet-2,000

Special Service BIdg. 2
Square Feet-1,104

District Storage Bldg.
Square Feet- 5,000

Garage Apt.

Square Feet" 2,030

18th Ave. Field
Square feet-1,800

Number of Schools at June 30,2023:

Elementary = 4

Middle School = I
Senior High School = 1
Other = 1

Source: District Facilities Office, District Records

Note: Year of origmal construction is shown m parentheses. Increases m square footage and capacity are the result of

additions. Enrollment is based on the annual October district count.



EXHIBIT J-19

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

SCHOOL
FACILITIES

Wali High SchooS
Allenwood School
Central Elementary
Wall Intermediate
Old Mill
Primary
West Bclmar

Grand Total

PRQJECT#fs)

050
060
070
075
077
078
080

s

2023

110,759 S
45,216
50,340

105.932
68,093
26.746
37,576

444,662

2022

131,964 S
20,987
34,802

108.967
44,006
41,279
37,064

419,069

2021

88,503 £
31,437
15,561
51,354
40,964
18,370
43.229

289.418 i

2020

136,233 $
3 i,525
40,908
25,939
29.930
1B.345
17,445

300,325

2019

168,933 $
31,409
71,440
93,853
65,456
25,201
56.640

512,932

2018

87,265 $
39.077
54,929

196,273
38,219
2,166

11,395

429,324

2017

136,799 S
29,623
51,100

108,071
187,116

6,157
31.747

550,613

2016

102,842 S
35,96?
49,712
45,122
39,956
16,272
31,55]

321,424

2015

77,780 £
35,542
48,246
89.364
47,60 i
28,745
31.011

358.289

2014

147,150
60,219
59,643
82.433
54,979
28,113
59.345

491,882

Source: District Recoids

00
Lh>



EXHIBIT J-20

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

JUNE 30, 2023
UNAUDITED

SCHOOL PACKAGE POLICY (I):
School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

Property Blanket Bldg. & Contents
Program Blanket Limit
Comprehensive General Liability
Comprehensive Crime Coverage

Money & Securities
Workers Compensation

COMPUTERS & SCHEDULE EQUIPMENT
School Excess Liability Jomt Insurance Fund

Data Processing Equipment

Valuable Papers

Miscellaneous Equipment

Business Income

Extra Expense

COVERAGE

500,000,000
500,000,000 *

5,000,000
500,000

50,000
Stahitory

DEDUCTIBLE

$ 5,000
5,000

1,000
1,000

N/L

500,000,000

500,000,000

500,000,000

100,000,000

50,000,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

5,000

BOILER & MACHINERY - SCHOOL EXCESS JOINT INSURANCE
FUND

Property Damage

UMBRELLA EXCESS LIABILITY
Excess Liability - Dipolma JTF
School Excess - Umbrella Policy

SCHOOL BOARD LEGAL LIABILITY - ACE USA
Directors & Officers Policy

PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND - PABLO D. CANELA

PUBLIC OFFICIAL BOND - BRIAN J. SMYTH

AUTOMOBILE & TRUCKS
School Excess Liability Joint Insurance Fund

Source: District P&C Broker

100,000,000

5,000,000
30,000,000

Included in SLPL

400,000

400,000

$5,000,000 CSL

5,000
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SINGLE AUDIT SECTION
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1985 Cedar Bridge Ave., Suite 3 • Lakewood, NJ 08701 • 732797.1333

194 East Bergen Place • Red Bank, NJ 07701 • 732.747.0010

Certified Public Accountants + Advisors WWW.hfacpas.COm

EXHIBIT K-l

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Wall Township School District

County ofMonmouth

Wall, New Jersey 07719

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and

the standards applicable to fmancial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller

General of the United States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of

Education, State of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,

each major fund and the aggregate remaining ftind mformation of the Wall Township School District, as of and for

the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Wall

Township School District's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 2, 2024.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Wall Township School District's

internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control. Accordingly, we

do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Wall Township School District's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or

employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will

not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to

merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section

and was not designed to identify all deficiencies m internal control that might be material weaknesses or

significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been

identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we

consider to be material weaknesses. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in the accompany

schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding No. 2023-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School District's financial statements are free from

material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determmation offmancial statement. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not

an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an

instance of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State

of New Jersey and which are described in the accompanymg statement of findings and questioned costs as Fmdmg

No. 2023-001.

Management's Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perfonn limited procedures on the School District's

response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompauymg schedule of findings and

questioned costs. The School District's response was not subjected to the other auditing procedures applied in the

audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control

or on compliance. Tills report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State

of New Jersey, and federal and state awarding agencies and pass-through entities, in considering the School

District's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully Submitted,

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.

[atthew F. Hohnan

Certified Public Accountant

Public School Accountant, #20CS00260100

Lakewood, New Jersey

February 2,2024

188



1985 Cedar Bridge Ave., Suite 3 • Lakewood, NJ 08701 • 732.797.1333

194 East Bergen Place • Red Bank, NJ 07701 • 732.747.0010

Certified Public Accountants + Advisors WWW.hfacpaS.COm

EXHIBIT K-2

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY

THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY 0MB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Education

Wall Township School District

County ofMonmouth

Wall, New Jersey 07719

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Wall Township School District's compliance with types of compliance requirements identified as

subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the School District's major federal and state programs for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2023. The Wall Township School District's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary

of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule offmdings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Wall Township School District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs

for the year ended June 30,2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States; Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); New Jersey OMB's
Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid; and the audit
requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Our

responsibilities under those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey's 0MB Circular 15-08 are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Wall Township School District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program. Our

audit does not provide a legal determination of the School District's compliance with the compliance requirements referred

to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for die design, implementation, and

maintenance of effective internal control over compliance witli the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and

provisions of contracts of grant agreements applicable to the Wall Township School District's federal and state programs.
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Auditorfs Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the compliance

requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Red Bank

Regional High School District's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but

is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards. Government Auditing Standards, the Umform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular

15-08 audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey

will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material uoncompliauce resulting

from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noucompliance with compliance requirements referred to

above is considered material if tliere is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in aggregate, it would influence

the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the School District's compliance with the

requirements of each major federal and state program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, die

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material uoncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform

audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding

the School District's compliance with compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other

procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an miderstanding of the School District's iatemal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over

compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School District's internal control over compliance.

Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over

compliance that we identified during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed an instance of uoncompliance which is required to be reported in

accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08 and which is described in the

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item finding 2023-001. Our opinion on each major

federal and state program is not modified with respect to these matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform procedures on the School District s response to the

noncompliance findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. The School District's response was not subjected to other auditing procedures applied m fhe audit of compliance

and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.
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Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's

Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control

over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

We did not identify any deficiencies m internal control over compliance that we consider to be material

weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did Identify a certain deficiency in internal control over compliance

that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance

does not allow management or employees, in the normal course ofperfomiing their assigned functions, to prevent,

or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a

timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, sucli that there is a reasonable possibility that material

noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or

detected and corrected, ou a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a

deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance

requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weabiess in internal control over

compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the

deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned

costs as Finding 2023-001 to be a significant deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over

compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the School District's

response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The School District's response was not subjected to the

otlier auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the

response

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of

internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance

and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully Submitted,

HOLMAN FRENIA ALLISON, P.C.

Matthew F. Holman

Certified Public Accountant

Public School Accountant, #20CS00260100

Lakewood, New Jersey

February 2, 2024
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EXHIBIT K-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Note 1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance present the activity

of all federal awards and state financial assistance programs of the Wall Township School District. The School

District is defined m Note 1 of the basic financial statements. The information in these schedules is presented m

accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance)

and New Jersey OMB*s Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and

State Aid. All federal and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal

awards and state fmancial assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the schedule of

expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented using

the budgetary basis of accounting with the following exception: programs recorded in the enterprise fund are

presented using the accrual basis of accounting and programs recorded in the capital projects fond are presented

using the modified accmal basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described in Note 1 to the School

District's basic financial statements. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the

requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-

08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Therefore, some amounts

presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic fmancial

statements.

The School District did not elect the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate as discussed in 2 CFR 200.414.

Revenues and expenditures reported imder the Food Distribution Program represent current year value received

and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension Contributions represents the

amount paid by the state on behalf of the School District for the year ended June 30, 2023. TPAF Social
Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer's share of social security

contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2023.

197



EXHIBIT K-5

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2623 (Continued)

Note 3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary

comparison statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate

fmance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in

the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when

expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented m the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the exception of the

revenue recognition of the one or more deferred June state aid payments in the current budget year, which is

mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes payments are not recognized until the subsequent

budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the one or more June state aid payments in the subsequent year.

The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which

recognizes encumbrances as expendihires and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does

not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the one or more state aid June payments in the current budget year,

consistent v/ith N.J.S.A. 18A:22-4.2.

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $52,277 for the general fund and

($55,974) for the special revenue fund. See Exhibit C-3 Note A of the basic financial statements, for a reconciliation

of the budgetary basis to the modified accmal basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds. Awards

and financial assistance expendihires reported in the School Districfs basic financial statements on a GAAP basis are

presented as follows:

Fund Federal State Total

General Fund

Special Revenue Fund

Debt Service Fund

Food Service Fund

44,857 $
2,063,475

544,590

23,735,073 $
294,005
728,457

14,493

23,779,930
2,357,480

728,457

559,083

Total Awards & Financial Assistance $ 2,652,922 $ 24,772,028 $ 27,424,950

Note 4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and state

financial reports.

Note 5. Federal and State Loans Outstanding

The Wall Township School District had no loan balances outstanding at June 30,2023.
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EXHIBIT K-6

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant dellciency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to

finaucia.1 statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

yes

yes

yes

Unmodified

x

x

x

no

no

no

yes X no

2) Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on

compliance for major programs

yes X no

Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200

section .516(a) of Uniform Guidance? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listine Number(s)

84.425

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A

programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

FAIN Number^

S425D200027
S425D210027

$

x yes

Name of Federal Program

or Cluster

Education Stabilization Fund (ESF)

750,000

no
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EXHIBIT K-6

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Section I - Summary of Auditor's Results (Continued)

State Financial Assistance

Dollar threshold used to determine Type A programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Internal control over major programs:

1) Material weakness(es) identified?

2) Significant deflciency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor s report issued on

compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with

New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08? X yes

750,000

x

x

yes

yes

yes

no

X no

no

Unmodified

Identification of major programs:

State Grant/Project Number(s)

no

Name of State Proeram

495-034-5120-089

495-034-5120-084

State Aid Public:

Special Education Categorical Aid

Security Aid
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EXHIBIT K-6

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances of ncmcompliance related

to the basic financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing

Standards and with audit requirements prescribed by the Division of Administration and Finance, Department of

Education, State of New Jersey.

None.
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EXHIBIT K-6

WALL TOWNSmP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2023

Section III - Federal Awards & State Financial Assistance Findings & Questioned Costs

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses and instances ofnoncompliance, including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by Title 2 US. Code of

Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principais, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08.

FEDKRAL AWARDS

None.

STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

Finding 2023-001

Informationon the State fa^

495-034-5120-089 " Special Education Categorical Aid; 495 "03 4-5120-084 " Security Aid

Criteria or Special Requirement:

N.J.S.A. I8A:22-8.1, requires Executive County Superintendent approval and two-thirds affumative vote of the

board of education for Hne-item transfers from any general fund appropriation account that on a cumulative basis

exceed 10 percent of the amount of the account included in the budget certified for taxes.

Condition:

The School District transferred general fund appropriations an amount that on a cumulative basis exceeded 10

percent of the total amount included in the original budget, without proper Executive County Superintendent
approval,

Cause;

The School District was not properly monitoring line-item transfer requests sent to the Executive County

Superintendent.

Known or Likely Questioned Costs:

None

Effect or Potential Effect:

The District is not in compliance with State Aid Grant program requirements.

Recommendation:

Executive County Superintendent approval should be requested for any transfer from an advertised appropriation

account as defined under N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-13.3(f), which is cumulatively more than 10 percent of that amount.

The district should maintain documentation that substantiates the request was received by the Executive County
Superintendent when written approval is not received.

View.of Responsible Officiaj.s..&_Planne^^

The School District made great strides in improving in this area and will continue to address this fmding in the
Corrective Action Plan.
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EXHIBIT K-7

WALL TOWNSHIP BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

AND QUESTIONED COSTS AS PREPARED BY MANAGEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

This section identifies the status of prior year fmdings related to the financial statements, federal awards and

state financial assistance that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards,

Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principals, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and New Jersey 0MB s Circular

15-08.

Financial Statement Fiudmgs

No Prior Year Findings.

Federal Awards

No Prior Year Findings.

State Financial Assistance

No Prior Year Findings.
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